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EVERYTHING WE DO IS
DRIVEN BY OUR PURPOSE

Our purpose is
to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders
by making a

difference to our
colleagues, our
customers and
suppliers, and
our communities.




DIPLOMA AT A GLANCE

Diploma PLC is an internaticnal group distributing specialised
products and services to a wide range of end segments in our
three Sectors of Controls, Seals and Life Sciences.

We are a well-diversified and resilient business and our
decentralised model means ocur businesses are customer-
oriented, accountable and empowered to deliver.

OUR SECTORS (REVENUE)*

applicst ors

REVENUE BY GEOGRAPHY*

Us

Carada

UK

Europe
Australic/other




Our businesses design their individual value-added business models to closely meet the
requirements of their customers, offering a blend of high-quality customer service, deep
technical expertise and innovative solutions. Local cultures are created through our decentralised
management structure but we recognise a set of values that exist throughout the Group and
unite us as Diploma.

VALUE-ADD IS AT THE WE HAVE A DECENTRALISED BUSINESS MODEL
HEART OF WHAT WE DO WITH SHARED AND ALIGNED VALUES

Technical expertise Determined to get better
' every day

11oday 216330135

Service-led propositions Accountability Striving for high standards

Innovative solutions & Doing the right thing

TRACK RECORD OF COMPOUNDING GROWTH
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2019-22 CAGR:19%
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2007-18 CAGR: 14%
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15-year EPS CAGR:15%
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HIGHLIGHTS

TEAR FNDED 50 SEETEMBFR 2072

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR OUR STAKEHOLDERS

Organic growth Free cash flow conversion' Our Colleagues
We have worked hard to retain

great talent by engaging
O/ O colleagues across the Group. Our
/ Engagement Index is testament
O O to our businesses’ efforts.

Mozl 372, Mool o

Reported revenue growth'  Net aebﬁBiTDJA‘— ~ OurCustomers

Responsive customer service is
one of the key ways that our
O/ businesses deliver value, we are
croud that they are recognised
O by their customers.

feal 107 -

AdJusted operating margin' ROATCE' ~ Our Suppliers
During the year, our businesses

have engaged their key suppiliers
O/ O/ meaningfully on human rights,
labour lows and the environment
® O o through our Supplier Code,

Madel 1785+ Meoel: L,|(} teans

A@sted EP?ngvtF Dividend cover' Our Communities
As a decentralised Group,

we want to support the local
O/ X communities and causes that
rmatter most to our businesses.
O & We will continue to match our

N el ot i businesses’ fundraising in FY23.

FY2022  FY2021  %change




/9%

Colleague Ergagen et Indes

“Since beginning a business
relationship with Hercules OEM
in 2003, we have seen a supplier
relationship grow into a true
partrership, Over the years the level
of service has continued to excel.”

SNeptuns, a Heroules OEM customer

/38

»y suppliers icertified

/3%

=i donactions U charity
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KEY ELEMENTS OF OUR

LONG-TERM VALUE
CREATION STORY

Cur business model

Our strategy

Delivering value responsibly
Sector reviews

Governance
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WHAT WE DO

DIFFERENTIATED VALUE-
ADDED SOLUTIONS

Our value-add distribution model
underpins everything we do and
is the foundation of the Group's
success. We supply progucts

and services critical to customer
needs. Our service component
builds loyalty and resilience,
pricing power and margins.
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WHAT WE DO

DIPLOMA DELIVI

SUSTAINABLE ORGANIC
GROWTH STRATEGY

Organic growth is our number
one priority. All of our businesses
have fantastic opportunities,
We are focused on business
revenue diversification 1o drive
organic growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating

in fragmented rarkets, we also
seek to maoke complementary
ccquisitions to accelerate
organic growth.

it Sk e et R L
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SCALING OUR VALL
ADDED MODEL

.
As our businesses grow ot ¢
scale, they need to evolve their
operating model to continue to
deliver their value-add customer
proposition. Alongside this, we are
quietly evolving the structures,
capability and culture of our
decentralised Group to support
the businesses on their journey

1o scale.

"D Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022
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WHAT WE DO

DELIVERING VALUE
RESPONSIBLY

Delivering Value Responsibly,
our ESG frarmewaork, puts
environmental and social
impact at the forefront of our
strategy and culture. We are
focused on the key areas in
which we can make o difference
to our colleagues, customers
and suppliers, communities,
anlhareholders.
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RESPONSIBLY
POSITIVE IMPACT
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL

DRIVEN BY OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES
OUR PURPOSE

Our businesses deliver value-added services

and solutions to a wide range of customers and
end segments. Our value-add component creates
customer loyalty and share of wallet; reputation
and market share growth; and pricing power

and margin.

Our purpose

is to consistently
deliver value
and reward our
stakeholders by

making a difference
to our colleagues,
our customers and
suppliers, and our
communities.




THE GROUP WE DELIVER
FOR OUR
STAKEHCLDERS

O

As a customer-service organisation, our
decentralised approach is central to our success.
The Group has an important role to play in
supporting our businesses.

MBIAIFN
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CHAIR’S STATEMENT

Our businesses have strong cultures, but
share the same inherent values - they are
accountable, entrepreneurial and empowered
to deliver for their customers.

Colleag

oI

Very strong financial performance,
excellent strotegic progress

Dividends
Tre ST
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CEO’S REVIEW

I am delighted with our 2022 financial
performance and strategic progress. The
management team and all my Diploma
colleagues do a brilliant job - thank you.

Very strong results and excellent A very strong ﬁnancaal performance
strutegnc progress : FIR L RN

Sustainable organic growth strategy:
revenue diversification driving growth,
bulldlng scale and i |ncreosmg resmence

1. Positioning behind hlgh growth end
segments Yo Tt

R :
Renewcble energy cnd m‘frastructure
|nvestmen‘t : =

Qrganic growth

+19%

Very strong organic growth driven by

our revenue initiatives, positive demand

and pricing 2. Geographic penetrctlon cf core
developed economies: ..~ -

EMREE S LTt




oo o s b T e = US
cmd Europe at Intemo‘tloncl Controls
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3. Product range extension to expond
nddressab!e markets: :

e . N R T
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) - ~ R&G Fiuid Power
Group (R&G) represents astep chonge
for Seals -

. w0 oL exciting
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CEQO’'S REVIEW
CONTINUED

- Operational excellence: -+ .

Ll i R .

LJR Electronics (Controls):

Portfolio discipline

R&G (Seals):

-, Talen

t, Tech

Scaling our value-added businesses Facility:

and the Group

LT

Accuscience {Life Sciences): Scaling our value-added businesses - Talent: - R

(‘S;ec;-is}-: o :

EEESES M

L ARV S

- = Care Competencies -

ACT

Silicone Solutions (Coﬁtrols): b

- Two small bolt-ons at R&G (Seals): B - © - Focility .1 -
TS Bl SV T
Rl TR R A . S e
~ Commercial discipline {or pricing): R

We have maintained high-teens
margins of

18 9%




e Group

Increasing resilience underpins our
outlook

yoday 2163104y

Delivering Value Responsibly:
embedding into our commercial
strategy and culture

We have grown EPS by

L - Johnny Thomson
- O/ Chief Executive Otficer

sustaining our impressive compounding
track record

JE

Excellent and consistent colleague
engagement score 5~ 00 5

SIUBUINLDIS [PIFUDUI

o B

Ikncrre'osing the diversity of our Senior
Management Team (SMT) -=- -
B S T e -

Carbon emissions flat despite 15%
organic revenue growth © - -

.



STRATEGY

Building high-quality, scalable businesses
for sustainable organic growth

Compounding
1. Revenue diversification Financial
to drive organic growth

Organic

Revenue
growth

Operating
. Margin
3. Scale our businesses to execute

value-added customer proposition B

Cash
conversion

5. Delivering Value Responsibly

2z Dipioma PLC Annwci Regert 2022




1. Revenue diversification to drive
organic growth

Our sustainable growth strategy is focused on revenue
diversification to drive organic revenue growth, build scale and
increase resilience. Operating in a broad range of markets, all
of our businesses have fantastic opportunities. Our strategy is
focused on growing, diversifying and scaling in three ways:

O1 02 03

Positioning behind Geographic Product range
high-growth end penetration of core extension to expand
segments developed markets addressable markets
All of our businesses have We are relatively We extend our product
opportunities to tap into underpenetrated in our ranges incrementally

high growth end segments, core developed markets within our businesses

many of which aiso have of North America, Europe and at portfolio level.

a positive impact on the and Australia where there

environment or society. is significant potential to

increase market share.

STRONG ORGANIC GROWTH TRACK RECORD:

TARGET:
MID-SINGLE DIGIT

ORGANIC GROWTH

odeyaibaipas | maimaag |
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

2. Targeted acquisitions to accelerate
organic growth

Focused portfolio development is key to the sustainability of our
growth strategy. As we grow, it is important that we focus on the
key, scalable business lines that represent our model and which
we are the right owners to grow and scale.

O 02 03

Acquisitions to A disciplined Success factors
accelerate organic approach

growth

Target attributes

Strategically & financially disciplined

“Our approach to acquisitions Historic M&A spend (£m)
has become more structured
and strategic. This has
expanded our acquisition
pipeline, enabling us to take

462.2

— 166.6
advantage of a busy market
whilst also maintaining our
strong financial discipline.” s ‘
Steve Sargeant, 7.8 327
Cerporate Development & 22 - N ZC—‘ & —

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

Director




CASE STUDY

Windy City Wire:
accelerating organic growth for the
Group

Windy City Wire is a leading value-added distributor of
premium quality low voltage wire and cable.

Acquired in October 2020 for £348m, the business
represented a material strategic step forward, accelerating
organic growth for the Group as a whole. Importantly,
Windy City Wire diversified Controls into the large,
attractive US industrials market and significantly increased
the Group's exposure to high growth end segments.
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION: o - ' T
ACQUISITIONS ACCELERATING ORGANIC GROWTH

Acquisition of Accuscience in Ireland: Acquisition of LJR Electronics in the US:
positioning behind high growth end segments penetrating core developed economies and product
and penetrating core developed economies. range expansion to expand addressable markets.

ACCUSCIENCE " LJR;
L J

BT DT ECT SO TN T

Portfolio fit:
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CASE STUDY

Acquisition of R&G Fluid Power Group in
the UK: penetrating core developed
economies and product range extension

In April, we acquired R&G Fluic Power Group (R&G), a high-
quality aftermarket distribution business for our Seals Sector
i the UK, for ca. £100m.

R&C is a value-added distributor of a diverse range of industrial,
nydraulic and pneumatic products (including seals and
gaskets). Its value-added propoesition is based on responsive
customer service, technical advice, breadth of stock and
nroduct custornisction. Over time, the management team has
built a platform with extensive reach across the UK, including
through consolidating @ number of regional distributors to
extend geographic and product reach.

Characteristics: Portfolio fit:
o valsadeed cftenyicrket gistribaaor - Sraleir core UK nnorks ar oo
Eweerivivs LK oact subeergins aith cxinting
- Fuim Poveer s st rargs
i ket
Value drivers: ot o globel Seals

At O S Ly T Tartier
curealHete woncll regiorar ornpetitors
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

3. Scale our businesses to execute
value-added customer proposition

Our service component builds loyalty and resilience, pricing
power and margins. As our businesses grow, they evolve their
operating models to continue to deliver their value-add
proposition at scale — how a £10m revenue business delivers for
its customers is very different to a £100m revenue business.

We have created a framework for our businesses to plot their
Journey to scale, including defining the right target operating
model of the future, developing the Core Competencies that
underpin it and the capability that will deliver it.

Evolve target operating model

Scaling our
value-added

businesses Core Competencies Capabilities

Co r;éomﬁeten cies

T ETENT AT TR LT IIL T Tt LI

Supply Chain Operational Commercial Route to
Management Excellence Value-Add Discipline Market




4. Evolve the Group to support
decentralised delivery

Our value-add distribution mode! underpins everything we do
and is the foundation of the Group's success.

vioday ai1baipiyg
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Scaling
the Group
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

STRATEGY IN ACTION: ) o —_— : .
SCALING OUR VALUE-ADDED BUSINESSES AND THE GROUP

Australian Life Sciences: building a scalable Chicago June 2022: sharing best practice
platform for growth and building leadership networks




CASE STUDY

Talent

“Investing in talent is critical to the
sustainability of our growth”

Jill Tennant
Group HR Director
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STRATEGY
CONTINUED

5. Delivering value responsibly

Our DVR programme is built on five,
material focus areas and positioning
ourselves for commercial growth with
a positive impact on society and the
environment. Embracing DVR is key
to executing our strategy, fulfilling our
purpose and scaling and managing
our business sustainably.

DIVERSITY, EQUITY
& INCLUSION

COLLEAGUE
ENGAGEMENT

HEALTH & SAFETY DELIVERING
VALUE RESPONSIBLY

ER T

A

s,
S




By aligning our businesses with our five
focus areas and positioning ourselves for
commercial growth with a positive impact
on society and the environment, we can
play a meaningful role in building a more
sustainable world.

Delivering for our People Delivering for the Environment  Delivering a Positive Impact

Read about our performance in each of our focus areas
on pages 36-47.

R

Our businesses have established DVR committees and Read more cbout cur DVR metrics and targets on
appointed persons responsible for performance and page 53.

progress against targets.

Read about our DVR governance, responsible business
practices, and policies and procedures on pages 50-57.

FIUDUIFACD) a:u:uod.:og
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DELIVERING

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
OUR COLLEAGUES

Z
;
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Our colleagues are the foundation of our
business. They deliver value-add to our

customers, execute against our strategy
and are essential to our ongoing success.

Our decentralised Group employs ca 3,000
colleagues aoross multiple businesses,
geographies and communiti=s. This year, we
2 med ca. 500 news colleagues through
acquisitions. The scfety, wel\ben‘g and
=ngagernent of those colleagues is our
primary concern and central to how we
aeliver valus.

Coveloping, attrocting and retainirg talent
in an cgaitable Jnj inclusive ervironmert
wall support sur surney o scole, and s an
irnportant diHPn,r\ﬁ"twr ir o challenging
labour market. ro‘rwctmq cur acile ar
accsuntable cultere as oy ncerping
wur periormencs and be tract

high ceality acguisition:

89%

of our colleagues are proud to work for
their business

Brilliant leadership

Cur decentrelisec model means that o
Senior Leadership Tearn (SIT) plays o key
tole in progressing the cullure ang strcte

of the Group, s wall as tre performance

of their businesses and Sectors, Our 5L
cemprised of cur Executive team, the
Managing Directors of our businesses and
key Group rales - hiss demonstrated brilliont
leadershiz durirg FY22, continaing to losk
after ard support our colleagues, serve our
custorners and show great aglity and
resilience despite geopolitical and econamic
urcertanties.

35 Diplommo PLC Annual Report 2022

In June this year, we brought together

members of the SLT in Chicago to
celebrate their hard work and discuss
our strategy. This was the SLT's first
time meeting in person since the
pandemic and a key opportunity to
strengthen networks, build cur culture
and integrate new senior leaders

Building engaging and fulfilling careers
W continue to evalve our culture ared
ort calleagas engagernent adross the
aup. We acquirn new businesses every
year and give carsful conside-ation to how
we onboord collesgues that [=in us throuagh
Jcguisiticn.

Group intzmal cormrmunication is o pawe
toolfor us - cur CEO updates our colleagues
directly theough quarter y vidzos are
irformation is sarsd acrots businesses and
Sectors through our inlernal newsletter This
year wo intreduced a learning managerment
systern, wwhich is currently being rolled out

acress the Group.

Development of 1o ent supports our
strateqy, despens engagernent ordis
importart at every level of our busicess,
Many of cur colleagues uraergc on the job
trairing, whether through cpprenticeships
or external certification. Trough our DVR
prograrmeme, we bave staned T” Jovelop
netweorks thet facilitate knowlec shering
across certain functions such os Health &

Satety, Supply Chain Management, and HR.

Mental health and wellbeing
We are mindful of the potential i-rpact that
g envirormisrts and practices hos

cnour colleaguesn. During the yeoar we
continued to hale “vﬂ\lb@\rq and resilicnos
viorksheps with businesses ane provided
resourees to rmark Worlz Mental Heaith Day,
which weas celetrated across the Group,

S externol
clitical instability, the

We ore alss acotely gweare o
factars - Covid-19
cost of livieg oz
IMPAct Gur <
mrertal Fealtt, We hmp *mrke‘
regssare exisling colleagues, as we H o
thess that jom the Grous thisugh
accuisition, and ars pleassd that 86'%
gues “ecl tiat their ol <

geeording 1o SuLr SNGNaSment survey.

Forthar assstonoe in atfered theough our
Emiplyes Assistance Progrararma, w } |\_|
covars allexisticrg businesses, A
rougbt onto the progra edum‘:_]
' ng Counsclling is © \ﬁu Horod 13
busireszes where collongues bave suffered
o bereavemert o tragic evert.

voday 216310015




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Engaging our Colleagues

Engaged colleagues perform better. Our

e e oy our colleagues colleagues have great technical expertise
and in-depth knowledge of their products

2022 Highlights and markets. In a challenging labour market,

_ 59% coeogue angogementindes €Ngagement helps us to hold onto that

- 70% of Group colleagues are talent, knowledge and expertise.

active on ow New learning
management system

86%

response rate

79%

engogement index

KPI

Engagement Index

{an externally benchmarked score
from our annual engagement survey)

Target
Maintain an engogement index
of 70%+

Ongoing focus

- Build out our learning management
system

- Continued focus on wellbeing
and mental heaith

- HR network to support best
practice s .

- Continued leadership developrnent It's really important to us that

we continue to prioritise and
engage our colleagues across
the Group. Earlier this year we
held our second engagement
survey. The engagement index
was 79% with over 2000
colleagues taking part.”

Jill Tennant,
Group HR Director




75%+

all of our businesses achieved an
engagement index within a range
of 75-85%

Q0%

of our colleagues believe that their
work is meaningful, according to our
engagement survey

88%

of our colieagues believe that their
manager empowers them, according
to our engagement survey

Leadership style

75% 2%

2022 75
2021 73

Learning and development

70% 4%

2022 70
2021 66

Weilbeing

79% +1%

2022 79
2021 78

CASE STUDY
M Seals UK Employee
Working Group

“I like that | can act on behalf
of my colleagues to voice their
concerns or issues. | also like
that we develop a plan or
response to each issue right
there in the meeting so it gets
sorted straightaway. It's a
great way to communicate as
all the branches of the business
are there together at the
meeting - whether it's a
finance issue, a management
issue, or a warehouse issue.”

Sati Sing,

Warehouse Operative and
member of the Employee
Working Group at M Seals UK

yioday 216330435 S



DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Ensuring Health & Safety

Keeping our colleagues healthy, safe and

Qur vislon s thett no one fs harmed well is a prerequisite to doing business.

We have a duty of care to any person who
2022 Highlights is working remotely, working at, or visiting
ot Sty eotore a Diploma business.

- More robust reporting

- Reduced severity rate

- improvement in potential
hazard reporting

~ Improved governance at business
and Sector level

10.6

LTl rate

44,

reduction in severity rate

KPI

Lost time incident (LT1) Rate
(number of lost time incidents per
1,000 employees)

FY23 Target
5% year-on-year reduction in Ll rote

Ongoing Focus
- Build positive mental heaith

36%

and wellbeing S .
- Continuous improvernent ond focus LT
on Health & Safety culture of colleagues feel that Health &
- Ensure process in place to reduce Safety is taken seriously in their
risks identified by potential hazard business, according to our Colleague

reporting Engagement Survey




CASE STUDY
North American
Seals
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Group performance stats
LTl rate

Severity rate et e, SET

Potentiol hazards




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Promoting Diversity, Equity & Inclusion

QOur vision is to build a diverse
workforce, where all of qur colleagues
feel able to bring their full selves to
work and fulfit their potential.

2022 Highlights

- New Group Diversity, Equity
& Inclusion Folicy

- Unconscious bias workshops

Training for Senior Leadership

Team on inclusive leadership

Ethnicity reporting

27%

of the Senior Management Team
are women

KPi
% of wornen on the Senior
Management Team

FY30 Target
Wornen represertt 40%+ of Senior
Management Team

Ongoing Focus

- Succession planning

— Implementing the Diversity, Equity
and Inclusion Policy across the Group

~ Further learning and knowledge
sharing

We remain comnmitted to better
representation across our Group and
businesses, particularly in management
and leadership positions.

Gender diversity (as at 30 September)

Toal

Ethnic diversity {as at 30 September)

Freter

Neon- Ethnic not 1o
sty minority 53% TPtﬂf
S 0 < -
O/ L

of external hires into the o
Senior Management Team during the Pe
year were women o

% of women on SMT

2022 27%
2021 24%



Diversity of our Senior Management Team

Gender diversity Ethnic diversity

Women 27% Ethnic minority  10%

Q

Prefer not tc say  15%

Gender diversity across the Group

Board All employees

Women 43% Women 31%

CASE STUDY
International
Women'’s Day

Imternotienal Wornen's day was
celebroted by businesses across the Group
on 8th March 2022

Businesses brought their teorns together
at lunches, discussion groups and through
fundraising events to discuss bias and the

challenges faced by wormen in the workplace.

All colleagues were also given the
cpportunity to attend a #BreakTheBias
workshop, which highlighted examples of
unconscious bias and the role that we can
all play in tackling it at work.
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DELIVERING vALUZ RESPONSIBLY
CONTINYED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS FOR
THE ENVIRONMENT




We are a Group whose businesses, supply
chain and end users stretch across the globe.
As a distributor, our operational emissions are
relatively modest, and the vast majority of
our emissions will sit in Scope 3.

Calcllation of our Scope 5 emiszions s o
compliceted undertak ng ir a decentralizeg
Group, such as curs, Wi are weorking to do
this ahead of sLbmitting o net zero target
to the Science-Based Torgets Initiative (SBTH)
during FY2Z2.

The clineate crisis o arcent ara al, we
. - - . Lmg i
recognise the impact rowider footonnt
ard the narrowing window of opportunity
tomake oo mtribation intockling
this crisis. Beyord toe rmaral abliqarion that
we fe aleo see the contribution to the
loro terrm velus crzaticn and grawth of oo

b3 s mes pes

Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022

Cur colleogaes are increasingly passionate
about climate change and oxpact the Grop
ta drive progress and support their iitiativers.
There s also the opportunity eliver

volue to our customers by offering mrcre
sustaiable products and solations, building

: e impact on saoiety
ard the ervironment.
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Sustainable Supply Chain Management

Our vision is for all of our key suppliers
to be compliant with our Supplier Code.

2022 Highlights

- Active engagement with our
suppliers on the environment

- Key suppliers identified and the
process has started to align with
our Supplier Code

59%

of our identified key suppliers are
aligned with our Supplier Code

KPI
% of identified key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code

FY30 Target
80% of key suppliers are aligned with
our Supplier Code

Ongoing Focus

- Continue to ensure alignment of
key suppliers with Supplier Code

- Align our Supply Chain Policy and
processes with our net zero targets

- Build our understanding of supplier
emissions

Management of our supply chain is key

to our broader social and environmental
impact as a Group, and a key part of our
strategy and commercial proposition. Our
focus is to work with our suppliers to tackle
climate change and reduce our own impact
through more sustainable packaging,
logistics and products.

Percentage of identified key suppliers
aligned with our Supplier Code

Key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code 59%




Tackling Emissions and Waste

To be net zero across our operations
by 2040 and net zero across our value
chain by 2050 at the latest.

2022 Highlights

- Emissions flat, excluding the impact
of new acquisitions during the year,
despite strong organic growth

- Waste measured for the first time

- Business-driven initiatives

Total Scope 1and 2 emissions

10,615

Tonnes CO,e

Emissions KPI

% reduction of Scope 1 and 2
emissions (tonnes CO,e) against FY22
baseline (10,615 tonnes COe)

Waste KPI
% of total waste to landfill

FY30 Emissions Target
50% reduction of Scope
1 & 2 ernissions on FY22 baseline

FY30 Waste Target
Less than 15% waste to landfill

Ongoing Focus

- Set SBTi net zero terget

- Build internal knowledge of
Scopes 1,2&3

- Divert waste from landfil

- Setout a clear roadmap to
our 2030 torgets

We are committed to net zero emissions
across our value chain by 2050 at the latest.
We have set an interim 50% reduction target
for our own operations by FY30. We are
currently calculating our Scope 3 and will
submit our net zero targets for verification
by the SBTi in FY23.

o - BRAL NAC AL
R R FURA PR Lone T 3,256 |2
R T '_ _ e we 7’359 _ R :k ;:

RS 10,615 =0 &

Tonnes CO.e per £1m revenue Purchased electricity kWh

10.5 14,033,971

2022 . 2022 14,033,971
2021 . 2021 13,947.147
2020 . 2020 7,762,447

Gross emissions

10,615

2022

2021
2020 4,331

o
t+
=
o
+
o
Q,
(4]
el
1]
e
o
=
+




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

TaT age.

Waste by destination

CASE STUDY

Packaging

Packaging initiatives are being put in place
acress the Group. For many businesses, the
tocus has been on creating @ more circular
packaging system.

Sorme businesses have invested in shredding
rmachines in order to reuse incoming
cardbeard packaging as packing moterial
for outgoing orders. Other businesses have
focused on removing non-recyclable
elements from their packaging by replacing
plastic tape with paper tape - removing
more than a tonne of plastic for their
customers. Another scheme has completely
removed branding from alt packaging. By
working closely with cur suppliers te have
products delivered in plain, cardbeard
boxes, product packaging can be reused by
our businesses and customers.

All of these initiatives support our ambition
to reduce our waste-to-londfill and overall
waste. [t also supparts our custorners in
achieving their own net zero ond waste
reduction initiatives.
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CASE STUDY

Facility upgrades

During FY22, our European Life Sciences business,
Simonsen & Weel, moved into a new location that
benefits from more efficient heating and cooling,
solar panels, state-of-the-art insulation and electric
vehicle charging. The business also decided to
improve biodiversity in the surrounding area by

sowing wildflower meadows on its surrounding land.

-\JOdOH 3!5919-‘15 ST




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DELIVERS
IMPACT

48 Dipioma PLC Annual Report 2022




Our businesses deliver positive impact
through products and services that benefit
our society or environment. Growth initiatives
in these areas offer exciting commercial
opportunities and support our purpose.

Foasitive impact reverde s gel erated coress
all businesses from the sale of products,
services and salutions that benefit our
sociely of envirsnimenrt and sopport the
trarsiticn W maie sastanable foture,
Growth imitiatives in these arcas offer g kay
opportunity 1o positively impact our
stokeholders,

Our busirosses also supply products that
suppeit healtby and safe cornmunitiss,

uch ae the highly-stranded silicone cable,
supphiea by our Contrals Secter, that is used
in defibrilotors and £CG eloctrodes.

49 Diploma PLC &nnual Repert 2022

Oar Lite Soiences busincsses offor diagnost'«
sohtions that make it guicker and casier 1o
idemti’y Ii[e—lhreutemng diseases, inc.udirg
i H'w 1 allowwes for
ey o G
borne testing bits * Or remctes cormimarities.

Our MRG seols bus’ sells Auid-seairg
e ant trademarked prog
u(h Tostanoed to provest

ised rmodal gives s
Spportunities it
: ing erd segrments ¢
W Mh (s >upp\|@r= ard their industnes to
inrovate new, speciclises products and
solutions.

Our positive immpact. revenue strecms are
an important cormponant of our argric
growth stiotegy ard each Sector has
groveth plams in place

1loday sibayong




DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

DIPLOMA DELIVERS
RESPONSIBLY
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Our Group purpose is to consistently deliver
value and reward our stakeholders by making
a positive difference to our colleagues, our
customers and suppliers, and our
communities. We are committed to fulfilling
our purpose in a way that is environmentally,
socially and ethically responsible.

DVR governance
Cur LVR govornance structure s lear and
I The GI'DUP
broge il eoviding airection
and wu p wrt, and tee Boars bas ltirmate
iality for DVE across

S . Turaets
*d Sector \\:/c\ and the
(JIOJp
! v)rml. lex *
performarcs withic their ares of
responaitsility

Iy lime weithy o 2021 p ledae, DVR Pl are now
int E_;.]\ 11~f| irta

T bsiresses repe rt their
SlalH dmc caartelly te tne Groug,
2o it s revi d b 1the zenior fFrance
team and man for improsernent by
the Sector lea “fr;hp Elslast

I MO ermor

nis dato is rovie ‘
arcz [DVR steerirg
correittee ord the Board,
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The role of the DVR Steeing Cormmittes,
which is chaired by the Group CED, isto
outline Group stratzgy against the DVR
frarneweork, set Group intiatives ord

targets, supposr the Sectors o d buairzsses,

and moniter and communicate progress.
The challznge of a decertzlised business
car e to ensure clignment with G
objectives ard drive meaningfu' [
Commurication is koy to the offec tuenees
of DVR managermio cross the Growp: and
VR feotures heavily in regular int Arr*al ard

SLT cermminricat

Our Senior Leadership Tearm (SLT}, which
includes busiress MDs, i updates quarterly

on DVR duning regular SLT updatss fronn the

CED. They alss attend ir-depth sessions
with reembers of the DVR Steering
Commiltee toreview performance and
DVR governance, receive updates an VR
strategy and palicy changes, and share
their successes and best practics,

The Execitive tearmn is updated on DVR
alorng with the HLT but alss hola more
detailed sessionz biannually as part of the
Crecutive Mectings. Sector CEOs meet
Bianrually with the DVR Steering
Comn‘{‘ttta‘:— far o DVR Governance miccting
tor discuss OVR stratcgy, goverran

\nroiu rewatod rishs omj appeartLniiss,
anc review proJgress anc initiativas.

The Board bads an anrual DVE session to
review DVR strategy, objoctives and

progress. Climaote relotec vsk managemert

isintegreled into Oroup risk maragement,

yoday 216310415




DELIVERING VYALLS RESPONSIBLY
COMIINCED

Qur DVR governance structure

Diploma PLC
Board &
Group CEO

DVR strategy &
framework 1

Group DVR
governance

DVR
Strategy
Committee

Executive
team

Reporting & —_
performance S

Sharing resources,
tools, best practice
& support

\}

Development of

DVR networks )
Business

«~ MDs&DWR
Committees

Oversight of DVR strategy &
performance

Oversight of climate-related
risks & opportunities

1

Sector & Group performance
against targets

Sector & business
governance and reporting

ldentification &
management of Group &
Sector climate-related risks

T

DVR performance and
initiatives

|[dentification and
management of climate-
related risks




Our metrics

and targets
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

Taskforce on

Climate-related Financial Disclosures {TCFD): our response

1 . : | .

GOVERNANCE
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STRATEGY
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DELIVERING VALUE RESPONSIBLY
CONTINUED

RISK MANAGEMENT
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Our policies and procedures
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

MEASURING
OUR
PROGRESS

FINANCIAL KPls

We measure our performance against

a number of financial and non-financial
metrics which reflect how we are delivering
against our strategic objectives (as set out

on pages 22-33), our financial model (see page
22) and our ESG framework (see pages 34-57).

Organic revenue growth

Organic revenue growth is the Group's
nurmber one priority. We focus on
products and solutions which are
critical to custorners’ needs, giving
resifience to revenues. We taroet
mid-single digit organic growth,

6%

Five-yecr average

Reported revenue growth

We aim to deliver sustainasie doubie-
digit growth through a cormbination
of organic growth and high-quatity,
value-enhancing acquisitions which
accelerate ouf organic growth.

18%

Five-year compound

Adjusted operating margin

Our differentiated value-added
solutions and custoner-focused
approach drive custermer loyasty
and create pricing power, supporing
sustginable and attractive margins.
We target a rargin of 179+,

179%

Five-year average

Adjusted EPS

EPS growth is a measure of how
successfui we have been in grewing
organicaolly and through acousiton,
inch.ding cop:tal cliocation and tax
consideraticrs. We target double-2igit
EPS growth.

17%

Five-year compound

Free cash flow conversion

A strong balance sheet end casn flove
fund our growth stretegy ana provide
healthy, growng dividends. We target
free cash flow corversion of 904

6%

Five-year average

ROATCE

This measures how soccesstu we are at

generating retutns on the invectrents we
rrave. We target ROATCE in the nigh tesrs.

20.2%

Five-year average

£8  Diplemo PuC Annus Report 2022




NON-FINANCIAL KPIs

OUR COLLEAGUES

Engagement index
An externally benchmarked score from our
annual engagernent survey

o/ O%+

79%

Lost time incident (LTI) rate
Number of LTls per 1,000 employees

% women on the Senior Management
Team {SMT)

TARGET FY30 TARGET

5% year-on-year reduction O()/
40%+

20 21 22 21 22

OUR ENVIRONMENT

% key suppliers aligned
with Supplier Code!

FY30 TARGET

80%

of key suppliers aligned with

% of total waste to landfiil % reduction of Scope 1 & 2 emissions

against FY22 baseline

FY30 TARGET

50%

reductionin Scope1&2

FY30 TARGET

<15%

waste to landfill

Supplier Code by FY30 emissions
J052 027 il veJ'
5 ; /O 60 /O 1 O 61 5tonnes COse
£y ; P g TOUTeET T aggrenats a7 least S0 uphe cpera e ne frotyesr of ter coting saa Tt rE et o BTE el s splers cere dent fied garags 1re Groap.
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SECTOR REVIEW

CONTROLS
- SECTOR
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The Controls Sector
businesses supply
specialised wiring,
cable, connectors,
fasteners, control
devices and adhesives
for a range of
technically demanding
applications.

Wlndy City Wire (WCW 50% Specialty Fasteners: 10%
jm : spec: 1It v, premium-guaclity

CiTication and othe
2d services for
sigrifice
savings for costomars,

Wire & Cable (UK): 9%
Specislst and Aexible cablde
prodducts and cabile
idorification, terrairation and
rmaragemert prodacts, and Fluid Controls: 6%

caohbliz mor:}\_ym"cm utions Fluic cortrollers, camipressors
acress o oroad hose of valvas, termperztare and

r—*pl—mcr rnert ol Ur ns.

customers in Burape. pressars reccsarcmant devices,

ona specialisea ficuid cisperns
Interconnect: 22% comporents prmocrily for
Harness componaris and custarners in the UK Food &
specialist connactors ased in Beverage ~ecton
techincally demane
CpRICations Goross HIF le Adhesives: 3%
industrizgs in Barope and the US, Specially siizones, adhesives
Cur busmesses wapply o rarge SIals I<e alants f(‘qwﬁwr with
of products one valae- -,EJJ Lechnical s it and other
services an oducts | walue-added services.
protes t\\w ML
lergthtabirg, Fitting, conrector
assenib'y ard protatype
quantities of customisea
miclti-core cebles.

61 Diplerna PLC Annucl Repaort 2022

Revenue by segment’

Windy City Wire
Interconnect
Spaciaity Fasteners
Wire & Calle (UL
Fluid Cortrels
Adhosives

Revenue by geography’

58% North Armernica
23% LUK

16% Continertal Lurope
3% Other

Reported revenue (fm)
{rormpourd growth over five vears)

+30% p.a.

22 492.8

Q

MIAIAIIN
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 FY 2021 Change in the year

Revenue £492.8m £3433m +44%
Organic revenue +2 4% +1 6%

growth

Adwiedoperatiog £105.8m £72.4m  +46%

profit

Adjusted operating 21 .5% 2‘] '!% +40bps

. . margin
“Our International Controls g
businesses have shown - Share gains in high growth end markets - Product extension: excellent arganic
remendous ener n and compelling custormer proposition rowth in our new Adhesives business line,
eree 9y d gH WCW perf v h { dd scal
HEH i riving an excellent performance: with a bolt-on acquisition to add scale
bUI[dIng momentum . It's organic revenue growth 32%, including and diversify end markets
been great to see their hard double-digit volurme growth
work pay off this past yec:r.” - International Controls crganic growth
o : .
18%, with accelerating growth in
David Goode attractive end segments while also
Sector CEQ, Controls broadening US and European exposure

Sector financial performance

[ T

“It's been another great year
for Windy City Wire thanks
to our great proposition,
winning culture and ability
to deliver for the customer.”

International Controts =7 . - - =0 -

Rich Galgano
CEO, Windy City Wire

S e e Specialty Fasteners = .= o0 tro
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§trqtegic progress CASE STUDY
e R -+ High growth end
markets

L vawandl

wn

fag

Fluid Controls = 58 a- -+ ¢ =
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Qur Adhesives business delivered »20%
crganic growth, helped by exposure to high
arowth end markets. Our preducts and
solutions have many applications, including
in electronic control units for electric and
autonomous vehicles and for waterproofing
connections as part of a large scale fibre
optic roll-out in the UK by @ major

. Lo o telecommunications company.

o e Read more
dipiomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
controls
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s EC'{'{)R _,"R EVIEW

~ SEALS
- SECTOR




The Seals Sector Revenue by segment
businesses supply a

range of seals, gaskets,

cylinders, components N
and kits used in heavy  * & i
mobile machinery and e Lo

a diverse range of fluid

power products with

Aftermarket, OEM

and MRO applications.

MIIAIBAQ P

yoday 21Bapays ¢

Revenue by geography’

International Seals: 47% US Industrial OEM: 18%
Cur Secls businesses in Burope Suppalies seals, gaskets, O-rings
and Australia sapply secls, ard custom- rmouldad and
gaskels, pumps and relotec machined parts. The business
aocessories custorn-moulded works closely with customers to
and machined parts, hydroalic specity the maost appropriate
cylinder comporents, and © seal desigr, material anc
diverse range of Auid power marufacturer for the
products to Alterrrarket, OV apolicotion; provides technical
and MRO custamers sepport during product
developrnert; ano delivers the
Narth American logistics capalsiitias to support
Aftermarket: 23% small to mediorn-sized
Supplies ¢ variety of seals, production rurs.
gereraly an o next-day basis,
for o broad range of mobils US Maintenance, Repair &
mochinery used in heavy Overhaul (MRO): 12%
Construction, Mining and Cur MRO busiress, ¥SP
Agriculture, Praducts cre used Technclegics (VSP), supplics
in repaic and maintenance after high-guolity gaskets and fluid RePOTtE‘d revenue (£m)
equiprnent hias completed its sea’ing products to critical (compound growth over five years)
imitial warrarty period or been services in high-cost-of-failure

sold or the pre-used market., applications, The business works O
Customers are rmainly repair directly with customers 1o + O p O

& 50% [North America
37% UK & Europe
13% Irternational
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shops, ergine and transmission improve sealing performance,

rebuilders and clher heavy providing expertise, product

equipment parts distributorns. recommendations ard training.
WO sells primarity 1o
transportation, chemical
processing, power and mar’na
customers.

22
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“The team has been the
standout highlight of my
first year - they've shown
great leadership in driving
growth in a tough supply
chain environment. I'd like
to thank them all for their
commitment.”

Ted Messmer
Sector CEQ, North American Seals

2022 was a transformational
year for International Seals:
we've welcomed around 400
new colleagues from R&G
and other businesses and
enter the year ahead better
positioned than ever.”

Alessandro Lala
Sector CEQ, International Seals

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

FY 2022 Fy 2021 Change in the year
Revenue £331.4m  £263.7m  +26%
Organic revenue +‘l 4% +7%

growth

Aduiedoperetns | £62.6mn £1465m  +35%
Awedoproing 189%  176%  +1306bps

margin

- Geographic penetration: Louisville giving broaden the Seals product portfolio into
access 1o previously untapped Western preumatics, expanding cddressable
and Midwestern states, driving markets
accelerated market share gains in North - Building scale: oeguisition of ACT,
American Aftermarket o supplier of innovative anti-corrosion

- Diversification in growth end segments: products and solutions, adds further scale
Internationat Seats organic growth 11% to the high quality platform for growth
with broad-based growth against a we have built in Australia over the last
strong comparator three yeors

- Product extension: strategic acquisition of
R&G in Aprii to build scale in the UK and

Sector financial performance

North American Aftermarket =< _ - T




CASE STUDY
Product range
extension delivering
organic growth

0

Strategic progress

MIIAIIA

1oday 216330035

New proprietary products helped to drive
organic growth of =20% in US MRO. The
business's Service Equipment Rebuild Kits
(SERK™) provide custormers with technical
expertise and o kitting solution that saves
time and money, and reduces the total cost
of awnership, Sales of the kits tripled in
FY22, attracting new custemers and driving
rmarket share gains.

Read more
diplomaple.com/about-us/our-sectors/seals/
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SECTOR REVIEW

LIFE SCIENCES
SECTOR

68 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




The Life SCienceS Revenue by segment’

Sector businesses
supply a range of

equipment, consumables, &
instrumentation and %

related services to the v 2%
Healthcare industry.

Canado: 43% Europe: 36%
Our market leading Canadiar Qur irish & LUK business
businesses supply clinical distributes leading-edgs

diagraostics instrurmentaticn
and products, ond specialty

hnclogizs, focused o

surgical devices together with ana speciatty medical devices,
related consumables and GiLr Scandiravian businasses
selvices to public hospitals, supply devices, equipnent

sz and pathology and patient msntoring

private clis

ichoratcries. technalogies used in operating
theatres o well as medically
Australasia: 21% supervised nutrition.
A lzading supplter 2f o
instrumertation ana 43%
cons.arables ta the pathalogy, 36%
1%

scientific research ard medica|
segments. Cperatirg i
Avstrala anc New Zealand, the
businesses alse supply speoalist
surgical equipment and
corsumables usea in hoszital
operating raeome,

Testing & Qicgnostics
Surgical
Gastreintestingl
Cther Pealthoare

cialist lzboratary diagrostics Revenue by geogra Phy1

Conada
Europe
Astralia

Reported revenue (£m)

{compound growth over five years;

+3% p.q.

22

188.6

6% Diplomag PLC &nnual Repart 2022
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“Our Life Sciences businesses
have done a great job of
developing our product
pipeline, focusing on
innovative products that will
improve patient outcomes
and position us in high
growth areas. Our prospects
dre exciting.”

Dan Brown
Sector CEQ, Life Sciences

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Revenue

Organic revenue

FY 2022 FY 2021

~ £188.6m £1804m  +5%

Change in the year

% +14%

growth
Adisiedopersting— £41.0m  £432m  (5)%
Adusted operetios  21.7% 239% (220)bps

Sector financial pe

Organic revenue growth was 2% - Strategic acguisition of Accuscience:
excluding last year's Covid-related
revenues and was rmoderated by hospital
staffing shortages; returned 1o organic
growth in 34 as expected

Strong diagnostics and endoscopy
performance

Sector well-positioned for growth: exposed
1o rising diagnostics spend and significant
elective surgical backlogs

diagnostics and medical segrnents;
continues the build out of cur European
footprint

~ Disciplined portfolic management:
disposal of al-envirosciences

rformance

testing and diagnostics .~ L. "oilz.

increases exposure to high growth testing,



Strategic progress R CASE STUDY
T ' ‘ S Innovative products
-~ driving growth

MBIALBAD

1oday o1baipig

A key highlight for the year was Life
Scierces' success with Fuji CAD EYE™,

an innovative endoscope utilising Al
technotogy. Our team partnered with Fuji to
commercialise this cutting edge product,
which has been a huge success and an
important contributor 1o cur strong
performance in endoscopy in the year,

Read more

diplomaplc.com/about-us/our-sectors/
lifesciences/
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 of the Companies Act 2006
requires the Directors to promote the
success of the Company for the benefit

of the members as a whole, having regard

to the interests of stakeholders in their

decision-making.

How stokeholder interests have

influenced decision-making

[ iele

Set oot belew gre sonre exarmpies of
deaisions maode by tne Boord in the yeor,

Dividend ' |
Dine ot the pringg isiors connideed ‘

S OO
oy The Doard over t 3 bee‘. n
relation to -etrning f’leE 1¢ sherehelders
'n making e decisions regording the 2021
finoe dividend and 2 Jvidend
the Board consideied our shar P“’n‘de"
expectations, the Cormoany = aau'dity .
DOShen, SN Tre requireent To ol '
2 prudent eve tadend cover taking
e o odnt the financial resolnrtes

requred o exacute our L utegy
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Acquisitions
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OUR COLLEAGUES OUR BUSINESSES CUR CUSTOMERS
Whyw;gagé_“
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ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS
AND SECTION 172 STATEMENT
CONTINUED

QUR SUPPLY CHAIN OUR INVESTORS ENVIRONMENT
AND COMMUNITIES

Why we eng:ge o

Why we engage

qu;;)e engaig; T ’
How the Board engages o B R T S et et o e
7 7 . . How the Board engages I

IR Lo LT3

- Outcomes/action token



CASE STUDY

Relocation of Abacus dx and
Big Green Surgical

This year, two of our Australian Life Sciences
businesses successfully integrated their operations
at a shared facility. The objective was to create
better operational efficiency and improve service
to customers and suppliers. Careful consideration
was given to colleague wellbeing, engagement
and career progression, including through internal
communication, colleague consultation, and
openly addressing any concerns raised. The

move has improved employee engagement

and development, as well as Health & Safety.
The new facility also benefits from LED lighting,
better insulation and more efficient heating and
cooling systems.

MBIALRAD

A number of our businesses have been
recognised by their custorers, suppliers
and colleagues this year,

Feefo Trusted Service Award .
at Shoal Group OWO r

Techsil won the Al

Distributor Awards for the fourth
year running from a major
supplier

Sitver EcoVadis award at VSP
Technologies %

customer satisfaction at M Seals

y,
S1UaWAINIG (BIDUBDULY
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M Seals UK shortlisted in Filcon Electronics awarded best
Developing Future Talent 2021 European Distributor by a
Category for Make UK major supplier

75 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




Q& A WITH OUR NEW CFO

What attracted you to Diploma? What are your priorities for
the year ahead?

- A

“Our strong
performance and
strategic progress
in such challenging A
circumstances are R
testament to our
outstanding
colleagues.”

Chris Davies
CFO




FINANCIAL REVIEW

N B Attractive, high teens margins Effective tax rate broadly unchanged
T ae (See table 2) N B SRR R e e U

R

Financiol highlights (See table )

uoday 216910035

Profit before tax RN . —

26% growth in adjusted EPS
and totat dividend
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
CONTINUED

Acquisitions to acce

i

ROATCE: strong returns

. Tores 7

Disciplined portfolic management

Strong balance sheet

Liabilities to shareholders
of acquired businesses




Organic revenue growth

15%

Reported revenue growth

29%

Adjusted operoting margin

18.9%

)

{See table 3) .

Employee pension obligations FX tailwind and interest headwind

T et e S largely offsetting -
Lo TN - T Free cash flow conversion

Q0%

Net debt/EBITDA

e 14

Table 3: Compesition of net debt

Type Tty Ammizant GEF equrvalent interestrate exposate
R o T ST T - B

- —— T g T
& T o7 - - - .

Gross debt drawn at year end £370.6m
I T A
Net debt at year end £328.9m

MIIAIIAG

1oday 216210435
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND
RISK MANAGEMENT

Effective risk management is integral to
our strategic ambitions and provides a solid
foundation for our businesses to scale.

Our approach

+

Our risk management

framework DIPLOMA PLC

Top down

The Group monoges
horizen scanning for
emerging risks, review
of principal risks,
internal contrals,
processes and risk

BOARD OF CIRECTORS

management
AUDIT COMMITTEE frameworks
EXECUTIVE
TEAM
Bottom up

Our businesses
continually identify
LOCAL MANAGEMENT TEAMS risks and oppartunities
to feed into sector and
Group risk reviews

OUR BUSINESSES




Risk o S R A o : Emerging risk scription

Ciens e et : : SR L T T Technology ' R
et Tees ¢ * ST evolution ’

Climate change

- ' 1
MIIAIRAQD

Cigitalisation

Identifying and monitering
material risks v

roday 216ay0a3g
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
CONTINUED

Principal risks and uncertainties

The Group’s decentralised operations, which
have different Sectors and geographical
spread, helps mitigate the potential impact
of these principal risks.

Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
Downturn/inSthi“ty Adverse changes in the major markets The busincsses igentify kay morket dm’versl
. . that the businesses ooerate ncar res.t cnd maontor rends and forecasts, cs well
In mMajor ma rkets in siowing revenue growth due ta reduced as maintaining ciose relationships vith key

or delayed demand for products and customers who may give an early warning
Risk category services, or margin pressures due to of slowing dernand.
Maocro/extermal risk increased competition.

A number of charocteristics of the Group's

Board risk appetite businesses modercte the impact of
Averse econamic ard bus ness cycles:

Change in risk

S

This nsk rermains at a similar level 1o iast
veas and is addressed continuousy in our
risk MoNagerent process.

- The Group's businesses ope-ate in three
orergmr Secrore with differant
Chgracter’stics anc Jomocs o number of
2eng ophic markets.

- The busnesses offer specialised products
anz serviees, which ase often soecific 1o
ther zoplication, noreasng custormers’
swrirching costs,

- L ng-proportion o the Oroun's revenue
rves consLrrob e oradocts, whice
rchased os port o the customer’s
aTng Duager, father tren through
coptal budgets.

wcases the products are used in
renzr, Mg enante and refurnishment
Iz THons rather than origing




Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Supply chain

Risk category

Strategi nigk

Board risk appetite

Cautious

Change in risk

©

Ssupoly chair disruption hos reduced
snce -ast yecr out eperationa!
mter-uptions at customers and supoliers
Lontihue

The abirty 1o service cur customers in o
Timely manner is a key port of our vaiue-
added prooosition.

For manufacturer-branded products,

there is the risk thot existing distribution
agreements and verticat integration of
suppliers is cancelled, therefore losing access
to ey distribution channels.

There is aiso the -sk of:

- A supplier toking away exciusivity.

Manufocturing lead times increasing as

a result ot supply chain shortoges. We

have experienced this, partizulary with

suppliers based in Asig, in the current

VEGT,

- Supzly choir partners not operating to
the same ethical stenoards as Dipioma.

Management continues 12 pursug
diversificatior strateges ana regularly
seeks alternatve scorcing.

Long-term, mublti-year exciusive contracts
move been signea with suns re wwith
charnge of contro!l clauses, where
applicabie, for protection o compensation
in the event of coguisition,

We mainta:n strong reationships wite
s.pplicrs and keep customars updated n
the event of change to retain key business.

Meeting with key custorers regu arly
te gan insight 1nto thelr prodact
requiretr.ents ad rmorkel aeeelopTets,

i

We work with cur supply Cnain partrers

tc help thern meet our stondards of
acceptobie working conditions financiai
stability, ethics and technico’ comretence.
if they cre unabie to meet these standords
Ther we will source product @ sewheare,

Inflationary
environment

Risk category

Maocro. exter nal sk

Board risk appetite

- .
; |+
LOUTIoLS

Change in risk

®

Significont or unexpected cost increases by
suppliers due to the pass through of higher
commodity prices or other price incregsas,
higher trode toriffe and/cr forewgn currency
Huctuations, could adversely ‘'mpact profits
if businesses ore unable to pass on sueh cost
increqses to customers.

Irmproved oricing processes ond the
value-odded activities undertaxen Ly the
businesses nean vie are Detter chle 1o
pass cost noregses 1o costormers,

A numper ¢f charactesstics ol tre Gioup's
pusinesses ~oderate e 1IMpatt of
economic and busi

- The Group's bu soerate i tnree
different Sectors witn ditferent
characterstics and aeross ¢ nurr ber
of geagrashue ~areets

- Trebusinesses offer spenigiined produsts
ond services, which are ofter, spec ho o
their gpoication, Horensng custamers’
Switching costs,

- Ahigh proporion of the O
COMPriees ComsurTabe Orodacts, w
are purchQseo a5 pait o7 the custormer's
cperating bunget ~athe than through
captaibodgets

- Inrnany coses tre pru
repar, m
appliceticns, retnar inagr o- gl
equipment rmar JTactore

yodoay nibaypayg
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED
Principal risk Risk description and assessment Mitigation
Unsuccessful Diplorna has a strong history of disciplined A clearly defined acquistion strategy
. els ccguisitions. The business maodef of the is 10 place with a disciplined approach,
QCC‘UISl‘nOn Group is based on successful acguisitions in including financial return hurdies, to
large and developed markets ond sectors. bringing high-guality, value-enhancing
Risk category businesses into the Group.
Strateqic risk The following are the key risks of an
acquisition process: An experienced Corporcte Development
Board risk appetite - The Group may overpay for a target. team is responsible for seeking and
Tolerant - The acquired business may experience evaluating new acquisition opportunities

Change in risk

©

The acquisition pipeline remains
healthy and Dipioma retaing s
disciplined approach to bringing
high-guaiity, valug-enhancing
businesges into D'pioma.

fimited growth post acguisition.

~ Loss of key custorners or suppliers post
integration.

- Potential cultural musfit as sraller
busiresses are facad with the new
requirernents of a listed Company.

The above may be the result of inadequate
due diligence, poor integration or unrealistic
assurmptions used in the investment cose.

with the Corporate Development Directar
reporting to the CEQ.

Aformai due diligence process is foliowed
for every acquisition, with close supervision
by the CEC and relevant Group senior
rmanagernent. A formal governance
process is in place ug to Board levei.

A disciplined post-acquisition integration
process covers operational, dnandial,
governance, egal and reporting matters,
The Board reviews performance of recent
acguisitions annuaity.

Geopolitical disruptions

Risk category
Macrorexternal rigk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in Risk

@®

This risk remicing e evated i~ certai
geographies, including dus to ohgaing

events such as the con®izt nlUkrane

Dploma operates ' established econories
with stable politicol and legaol systems.

Geopolitical events that could disrupt the
Group's operations are mainly reiated tor
- mterruption of trade agreemerits.
~ Toriffs.
~ Change of trade relationships amongst
caurtries in which we operate
(e.g. Brexit).
~ Government budget spending.
- Political eiecticns.

We continue 1o diversify our supply bass
and invest 'n product range development
to mitigate exposure to any sing'e marxet,
or region.

Whenever possble, we caprtatise on Group
synergies ond levergge inter-company
trading.



Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Health & Safety

Risk category

Operctioral risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

©

Relative to FY21 there has beena
significant decrense in Health & Safety
sk as o result of the conclusion of the
Covid-19 pandemic and improvernents
in processes arising from the panderric.

Some Diplormna businesses are exgosed to
—ealth & Safety risks, inciuding vio tne
2nvronment in which their emiployees.
contractars, customers, and suppliers
operate, or through the products they sell.

The Covid-19 pandem< placed o greater
focus on Health & Sofety ona preventive
measues 1o limit te spread of Covid-19.
implernenting and continuously evolving
these measures has improved Health &
Safety across the Group.

Additionally, management continues 1o
promote mental health and wellbeing,
offering supnort to coileagues and access
to an employee gssistance programime.,

Technology & cyber

Risk category
Cperatiomal risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

©

The risk of cyber attacks remained high

in 2022

The bugnesses mairtained a -igh
standa-d of cypersecurity whilst
accornmodating remote working
pract.ces in territories where strict
imckdowns were in olace as a resnonse
te tre Covid-19 pandermic,

Group and ~perating business maragement
aepend criticaily ontirmely and refiobie
information from their T systems 1o -un
treir businesses and serve their customens

needs

Ly disruotion o den'a of service may
delay or 'rmpoct decision moking ¥ refiob e
datc s unavoiche

Foor information handling or interruption
business a2y 5o eod 1o reduced service
o custorrers, Unintendec actions of
emplovees caused Dy o cyber-atiack may
wo tead to deruption, including froud.

4

ooy

C

-

G

The decentrolised nature of the Groug,
ncluding stand-alone 1T systems for each
business, imits the potentiar Impact to any
incividuct business. There is good support
and back-up puilt inte focal IT systemns.

Al businesses in the Group have a robust
cybersecurity, programme and we regularly
engage with cybersecurity experts to
continucusly improve and strengthen our
T systems.

A forrralised ERP appreval ond
implementation procese ensures
busimesses have the most suitcble
T systerns to effectively manoge
their business.

Business continuty o'ans exist for each
ousingss with ongoing *esting
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Talent & diversity

Risk category
Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Cautious

Change in risk

@

This risk has increased in the year, manly
due to curremt market labour conditions
with the tightening of labour markets
affecting candidate avaiiability and
retention, upwaGrd pressure on wage
levels in certain gecgraphies and
changing expectations of working
enviranments.,

The success of the Group is built on strong,
welf-standing management teams in the
cperating businesses, committed to the
sucress of their respective businessas.

A5 g result, the ioss of key personnel can
have an impact on performance for

¢ limited time period.

Not having tihe right talent or diversity

at ail levels of the organisation to deliver
Gur sTrateqy, resulting in reduced finarcial
performance.

Coentractual terms such gs notice penods
and non-compete clauses can mitigate
the risk in the short term.

The Group places very high importance
on planning development, motivation
and reward:

- Ensuring a challenging working
environment where managers feel they
have control over, and responsibifty for,
their businesses.
imolermenting a ctructured talent review
process for the deveioprent, retention
and succession of key personnel.

- Offering bolanced and cornpetitive
compensotion packages with o
cambination of saary, arnual bonus and
long-term cash or share incentive plons.

- Giving the freedom. encouragement,
hnencial resources ond strategic support
for managers to pursue ambitious
growth plans.

Product liability

Risk category
Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

S

This risk remains at g simiiar leve. 1o
iast year.

There is a rsk thot procucts suppled by O
Greun business may fail in service, which
ceuls ieadto a clairm under sroduct lability.

The Group may be exposed o lega’ costs
and nstenua: damages if the claim,
succeeds and the suppler fails to meet iAs
ligk: ties for whatever recson.

I situatiors where g Group business is
selng awn-branded products ana connot
subragate the liabil'ty to o suppier e
hesiness will be liable for failore of the
product,

2 4o nas lisbility insurance in oiace
:rGyiding copropniate cover for each

Technicaliv quolified personnel and cortro
syslermns are in pace e ensure products
meet qualty requirements. The Groun's
pusinasses are requ'rec ¢ undertcke
product risk assessments

and comorehensive suppier guality
US5.rQNCE QESEEST-ents.

Tz businesses, in thelr terms and
conditions of sale with customers

will typically ~irror tne terms ans
cenditions of puchiase fram the supplies
to lima oy Tanilit es,



Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Foreign currency

Risk category

Finasncia! risk

Board risk appetite

Cautious

Change in risk

This risk nas remained ot @ sirmilar leve!
to last year.

The Group s exposed to two types of
financial risk caused by cur-ency volatility:
translational exposdre, on transiat'ng the
results of overseas scbsidiaries into UK
sterling; and transactional exposure, due to
operating businesses’ revenues or product
ceosts being denominated in a currency
other thon their iocal currency.

Transiational foreign exchange risk arses
primarily with respect to the US dollar, the
Canadian doliar, the Australion dollar and
the Euro.

Astrengthening of UK sterling by 10%
against ail the currencies in which the Group
does business, would reduce adjusted
operating profit by approximatety £17.0m
(99%), due to currency translation. Sirmillarly,
a strengthening of UK ster ing by 10%
against ail the non-UK sterling capital
employed would reduce shareholders’ funds
by £31.6mm (5%).

Transoctional foreign exchange risk orises
principally with respect to US dollars and
Euros. The majority of the Group's Conadian
and Austraion businesses’ ourchases are
denominated in US dokars and Euros. The
Group's US busiresses do nct have any
materniat foreign currency tronsactional rsk.

The Group operates acress o number of

diverse gecgraphies tut does not heage
transiational exposure of operating profit
and net azsets,

The Group's busnesses may hedge upto
80% of forecast tfor o maximmu of 18
months} foreinon currency transactional
exposures using forward foreign exchange

contracts

Roiling manthly torecasts of currency
cxpasures are reviewsd on G reguiar basis.

Details of averoge exchange rotes used in
the transiation of overseas earnings ond of
year end exchonge rates used in the
transiation o overseas bolance sheets, Tor
the prncipal cur-encies ussd by the Group,
ore shown ir ngte 26 w0 tne consolidoted
financicl staternents.

0

MIIAIBA
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INTERNAL CONTRGL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

CONTINUED

Principal risk

Risk description and assessment

Mitigation

Non-compliance
with laws

Risk category
Operational risk

Board risk appetite
Averse

Change in risk

@

Lows governing businesses continue

1o increase in volumne, scope and
cormplexity. As the Group scales,
businesses are increasingly subject to the
requiotions of multiple jurisdictions thot
may not ali align with one onother.

Cur businesses are facing o large number
of requlatory changes over the coming
years in respect of environmental

commmitments gnd comtrols,

The Group's businesses are affected by
various statutes, regulotions and standards
in the countries and markets in which they
operate. Diplorna PLC itself is a listed entity
subject to regulation and governance
reguiremeants.

The board of each business is accountable
for identifying and moenitoring whot laws
are relevant 1o their business, including any
emerging or changing legislation, and for
ensuring commnercial leqal risks are
approprigtely managed.

The Head of Legal advises on legislative
and regulatory changes relevant ta the
Group as a listed company and has
aversight of all material transactions
including acquisitions.



VIABILITY STATEMENT -
DIPLOMA PLC

In accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code, the Directors have
assessed the viability of the Group over

a three-year period to 30 September 2025,
which is a longer period than the outlook
required in adopting the going concern
basis of accounting.

1oday oibaibiig
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CHAIR’S INTRODUCTION TO GOVERNANCE

Compliance W|th the UK Corporqte Governance Code
: ; v that for the firanaial vear crced 30 Septernbier 5022, the Corrpany
i stimbe LB T
! . E grset of
1I‘.fj direzton porsie ik LG Mo ac s tho weorktores)
arror yerr

UMM PRI T pwr‘:}“r‘
rate crenilabilo to e mg)
i yvider

Principles of the UK Corporate More information
Governance Code 2018

Beard leadership and company purpose Read rmors an phges
Diplomia s lod by an e ective and
ﬁr‘mth_d Board, dCFJ coted 12 prormsting
g s oss of The
'mmg value for sharcholda
and slakehio cand contributing to
waddor sociely.

Division of responsibiiities frard maore
The roles of the Chesir and the Group TEG
are separate and there (= an appropriate
balanes of Executive and independent
hion BEvecutive Diroctors.
Comnposition, succession and evaluation c0d e on s
Appoirtments ars sabject to a forrmal, 10812 N3
riggorous and transparert procodure,
: Sion [rans anz in ploace for the Boand
ard senicr reanagaraent, A luatizr ot
the Beard ard its oo 515 uwndertokan
armually, in e with the Code
Audlt risk and |nternul control Read rrore
Formsl trarsparest policies ard precedures 107 19 107
i rdonce and
: eirter ol ard exterral
func ard the irtegrity of
daland earsative stoteroer g, and to
NG e ansd ittt risk s

ferrearet
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Dear Shareholder,

Or penalf of the Board, | arr denighted

12 present tne Company's Corporate
Governance Report for the year ended

30 Septermiber 2022, which is oy first report
as your Chair. One of the responsibilities of
y rele s Chalr is to premiote and oversee
the hghest standa-ds of carporate
governance within tne Board and across
the Group. The Board ploys o critical role
in ersuring that every part of our Group
conducts its busness in @ manner which

s consistent with ethicar standards
aporopriate to o responsible corporate
'Tzen. A sound corporate governonce
frumewore with the night systems and
controls is key 16 ensuring sustainable
lang-term success: we are also very
conscicus that effective goverrance 's nat
purely a matter of requlatory comzliance
bat encompasses rmany issues inciuding
cperating with integrity and honesty,
prormaoting diversity and enabling better
decision-making through inclusion to
ensure we botance the needs of oll
stakehoders and operate in o foir and
transparent manner.

This vear will be the 30th anwversary of

the publicotion of the Cadbury Comrrittes’s
rEDOrT O CoTporate governante, the
founding document for taday's UK
Corporate Governcnee Code (the Codel.
Tre report nighighted the importance of an
effective boare 'n creating ond maintaining
good corporate governance and set out the
tundomento's of good governance which
remain ir the current Code, As the
enviranment In which corporais ctzens
operate mas evolved and our Group has
continued to grow N scale and complexity,
~tivued to develop and 'mprove
vrhist constitutes good governance w'th a
marticuiarn focus on stakehciders,
sustanability, and long-term value creation

wot hirrve

“The high standards of
corporate governance
underpin everything
we deliver.”

The Board s very conscious of the -oie 1
plays inensuning that Diploma operatesin
manner which is consistent with the highest
standards of corporate governarnice. The
pardemic has accelerated the evoluton i
the approaches of sharehelders and other
sraxeholders to these and brooder topics.
Financial performance is no longer the soe
guiding reasorn for @ corporation, instead it
must consider its place and role in saciety,
‘ts -esilience and its ability 1o creote vaiue
over tirne for a wide range of different
stekeholders. Throughout the last few vears,
we have developed our approach and
thinking around shareholders and
stekeholders, how we capture their views
and deliver their interests. A core element
of this is the werk trat the Board has cone
over the year to ensure that Diplomao
cortributes to wider socety through
sustainable, long-terr proctices s wer as
through our Delivering Value Responsibly
(DWR) targets. Further information om our
sustainability programmes can be found on
pages 42 to 53. We have also continuea to
evolve and embed our DVR progromme
throughout the Group. Insights frorm our
DVR prograrnme have been used to inform
steps taken by the Board, executive
rmanageTent ood our busnesses 1o
improve the efficiency of systers and

rocestes, with the goal of further
empowering our colieagues, increasing
agiity and speed in execution and
enhancing loca’ accountability.

Effective leadersnip and optimal callesgae
engagement depends on a heaithy,
ermpowered and positive business culture.
Diploma has g strong purpose, set of values
and conesive cuitnal fundamentals which
govarn our actions and provide guidance
across our varied businesses even in rece
chalienging times. The ‘mrperiance of
cature has been particutarly acute thes year
oz our colleagues continued 1o acapt to
new ways of working. Further detal s on how
the Board hos moenitored and assessed
cutture con be found on page 9%

We wil continue to refine and develor owr
QTVEINOTICe Processes, 1 ensure robustr
ond sHiciency, ot Board level and throwu
tre Group, in a way which enabies e
creation of sustaimable leng-term vowe for
cur chorengiders and stakenzlders.

Board succession and evaluation

Board succession rermmns a <ey area

of actnety ond focus Following the
-etirernent of John Nichoios at our Aonual
Genero Meeting {AGM} on 19 January 2022,
assumed the rate of Crar of your Board.
Barbare Gibbes stepoed down as CFO o
30 Septermber 2022, and Chris Davies was
appointed to the role on 1 Novermper 2022
Arine Thorbourn and Andy Smaith are due 1o
retire prior o the 2024 AGM ond tharefore
the Boad has commenced the process of
seeking sultanie candidates 1o take over
therr Committee Chair positions. The Board
is keenly aware of the need for diversity and
inclusion, which is @ kev component of the
Group's DVR pragrarrr e, The Board waill
continue 1o set the right conditions and
lead by exampie through 'tz own appreach
1o inclusion ong diversity across its
compasition; fu-ther information can be
found ir our No~inat'or Committee Report
an pages W02 1o M3

Akey aspect of gooo gover~ance s for the
Board to criticaily self-anclyse itseif, its
e nbers and Committees, 1 order to
continualy improve 't effectiveness. The
Board corries out effectiveness reviews
annually, and i FYZZ th's was undertaken
mrernaily in line withorae Code This
evaluation ~as aise enab.ed the Boord 1o
igent fy opportanities for 't te further
migiove ts effect eness; nddittong: detail
on the evalust or resuts and oreas of
3.

agreed focus can e found on page

The bo Fties for 2023 remnain
consistent, with o contnued focus on the
mplementation of the Oroug’ strategy;
chaliengng and empowering manageT.ent;
sLCCession [annng and ronagement of
ek, Your Board s wel placed to execute it
stewardstap role 1o ensure that tre Group
contnues 1o evive, sTale and deiver

g the Mteres
ermovees and other

18 Jaruary 2023

& Cormpany,
=1 wits the
any motters
future success

of the Grooo.

David Lowden
Chair

Q

MIHAIN

1sodey 216e1Dalg

0
)
=
o
=}
=
=]
~+
[}
[N
=}
<
]
=
o}
=}
3
0
m

S3UIWAZDLS |DI2UDULY




GOVERNANCE AT A GLANCE

Ethnic diversity

100% Mon-atheric mrimsarity

Skills and experience

BZ2E, Industrial & Distrib at o Dot

Gender diversity

57% Mole
43% Famale

Retail and FMCG Sectors.

Financial and Risk Moaragenoont

Operations

Customer Service

Health & Safety

Strategy

MEA/Financing

International Business

Board and Committee attendance FY22 (as at 30 September 2022)

Member

David Lowden
John Nicholas
Johnny Thomson

Barbara Gibbes /9

Length of tenure

57% 0-3vears
14% 34 vears
29% 69 vears

Nomination Committee

Remuneration Committee

6/6
L7l

Anne Thorburn 10/10

Andy Smith 10/10

Geraldine Huse

Dean Finch’

1 Dagn finch was unable o orrre oo

Chungélo the Board
- John Nicholas stepped down from the
Board on 19 January 2072

Board activity ond focus area

58] 25
® Strategy and strategic exsoution
Colleagues and Cufture

57 Diploma PLC Arncel Reaoart 2022

wder woas appointed as Chair of

4 angd Marairation Comnnittee

= 19 Janary 2022,

Financs
Plisx

R s It it iy B {7 N

- Barbars Gibbes stepped down from the
Board on 30 September 2022,

75

Operations
Governance

[ J
Fary .‘.’: Pawyp,

cAvAYLpS

Tory

a¥eg
- “‘

“""-'l:",n

ATLY
A p it
ATy, iy

$ ot




Our governance framework

Tre Board coriprises tne Chair, Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directers, and is responsibie for the performance and
iong term success of the Commpany, including health and satery, leadership, strategy, values, standards, controls and risk management.

David Lowden

Chal

Audit Committee
Chair: Anne Thorburn

Oversees and monitors the Company's

financial statements, accounting
processes, audit (internal and external),
internal controls systerms and financial risk
managernent procedures. Alsc moniters
the effectiveness of the interna! cudit
function and reviews the external auditor
independence and performance.
See more on pages 102 to 107.

Treasury Committee

Provides oversight of treasury activities in
implementing the treasury policies
approved by the Board.

Anne Thorburn
rr [

Board Committees

Nomination Committee
Chair: David Lowden

Regutarly reviews structure, size and
composition of the Board and its
Committees. ldentifies and nominates
suitable candidates to be appointed to the
Board. Leads the Board's succession
planning and keeps the senior leadership
needs of the Group under review.
Oversees the development of a diverse
succession pipeline,

See more on pages 108 to 113,

Administration Committee

Conducts general business
administration on behalf of the Company
within clearly defined limits delegated by

the Board and subject to the matters
reserved to the Board,

Independent
Non-Executive Directors

Remuneration Committee
Chair: Andy Smith

Reviews and recommends the framework
and policy on Executive Director and
senior management remuneration.
Reviews workforce remuneration policies
and alignment with culture.

See more on pages 114 10 138.

Disclosure Committee

Oversees the disciosure of market
sensitive information.

Chief Executive

Executive Directors

- e ey oyt e e e

P

Officer and Chief Financial Offic

Executive team
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
SKILLS AND EXPERIENCE

David Lowden
Board Chair & Nomination Chair

Joined
Octoper 2021

Current external appointments:

- Senior independent Director,
Margen Sndali ple

- Char, Capita =il

Relevant skills and experience:
— Industral and Distribution Sectors
- Snoncial and Risk Management
- Operaticns
St-ategy
MPE and Fingr

- Internationa Businass

Past appointments:
Chair, PageGroug pic
Sen o Independent Director,
Bererdsen plc
s Huntswortn pic
- Nom-Execctive Director, Witiom Hill ple
g &V reiess Wor dveide pic

Crief Exec tive Tav-or Neissn Sofras

Johnny Thomson
Chief Executive Officer

Joined
Fetruory 200G

Current external appointments:
- MNone

Relevant skills and experience:
~ 838 ndustriol, Distribution anid Service
Sectors

- Finoncat and Risk Manage et

- Operotions and Customer Service

- Strateqy
MEA and Finanding

— interngticnai Busness

Past appointments:

- Group Finance Director,
Corripass Group PLC
Regicnel Managing Directa gt n
Leperica, Comnpass Group 7l

Chris Davies
Chief Financial Cfficer

Joined
MNaverrber 2022

Relevant skills and experience
- Retgit amd FMCG Sectors
- Frgncig & Risk Management

Anne Thorburn
Senior Independent Director & Audit Chair

Joined
Sestemper 20'5

Current external oppointments:
- o Executie Director and Cnair of the
Audit Committee, 77 Electranics ple

Relevant skills and experience:
~ B2B ndustrio. and Manufactuong Sectors
- Fingn~ciah and R sk Manogement
- Stratesy
MR L ged Tinong:

T

- mternaticna Bos

Past uppomtrnents.
- Chief Fingnein O cer, Bxcva Group plo
- G ‘IL,‘MG'W‘

o, Polytmen

- MNon-Ereoutve D

Past appomtments




Committee membership
[R] Feviime:
Lot
MNomingtics
B oo

Andy Smith
Independent Non-Executive Director
& Remuneration Chair

Joined
Febrima-s

Current external appointments:
Mone

Relevant skills and experience:

- Healrrcore, Retanl, FMCG and Utilftes
Sectors

- Tpeatorns, HY and Customer Servee

- Strotegy and Rk v’lcxru:;,efr ert

- Sustamoniity, Dresrsity Egoty & lnciasion
and —=altn & Sote

e natond Boseiesy

Past appointments:
- Maonogmg Director, Severn Trent Services
- Woter Services Director, Seyverr Trent oic
- Croug R Drrecton

The 32
- Caustorer Reto

Loar Trent el

Geraldine Huse
independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
Jenuary 2026

Current external appointments:
- Presigent, Practer & Gambre, Canoda

Relevant skills and experience:
Retail and FMIG Sectors

- CUSIOFﬁE! Service

- Sales and Marketing

- Dversity, Equity & Inclusion

- Orgonisaticnal Development

- International Business

Past appointments:

- Chief Executive Officer, FRG Central
Europe

- Choir of the insttute of Gracery
Cictroution

John Morrison
Group Company Secretary
& Head of Legal

Joined

T e T e Fal
Lot 2020

Dean Finch
Independent Non-Executive Director

Joined
May 2021

Current external appointments:
- Grouz Cheef Execut ve, Persirmmon =L

Relevant skills and experience:

- BZBindustngl, Services and Retai Sectors
- Financiz! and Risk Managerment

- Operations and Customer Service

- Health & Satety

- M&A gnd Financing

- _)T g‘reg,-

- Imerational Busness

Past appointments:
Chief Executive Officer,
National Express Grouge ole

- Groug Chief Executive, Tube Lines

- Group F rgnce Drector & Group Chiet
Operating CHicer, FirstGroun pic

Ar-experienced F
ang commnercial 500
for the G'C‘up'< SU0, (OIS
covernan.e Tamewors

heg

—
al

dohn proy e =3 ups ot anc advice 14 “Fe
Direc tore, v e 5! aro ond ts Comem tTees

e hrin

iQouT 1C CCrDoTatE go
cnd emsures thor Boara oInce
tor ol cnd adhered To.

expertas nregu Jtary anc ConTTaiul own

and ieqal “isk manaaer-ent
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DIVISION OF RESPONSIBILITIES

The Boord is responsible 1o snarehoiders for
the Groue's inanciai and operationat
performance, risk management, culiure,
and is collectively responsibie for promaeting
the long termr success of the Group.,

The Boara is responsible for mornitaring
progress made ogainst strotegic objectives,
approving proposed actions and ensuring
thot the acppropriote internal cortrols are in
place and that they ae opercting sfiectively.

There is a forma scheduie of matter
reserved for the Board wrich sets out the
structure under which the Board manages
its responsipilities, providing guidance on
hovw it discharges its authority and
rmanages the Board's activities. The Boars
is assisted by three principa’ committees
{Audit, Nomination and Semaneration;,
each of which s respensle for revewing
ond deoling with motters within g cwn
terms of -eference.

z
T

-t

Matters reserved for the Board
The Board has a formal schedule of
rnatters reserved for its decisions:

purpose, strategy and management

values, cufture and stakeholders

rmembership of the Board and other

appointments

financial and other reporting and

controls

audit, risk and internal controls
ntracts and capital structure

communication

rermuneration

delegation of authority

corporate governance and other

matters

25

ROLES IN THE BOARDROOM

Non-Executive Chair
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
MONITORING CULTURE

Purpose, culture and values How the Board monitors culture
me Boord is resoonsitle for emfurlwq ot
the Group achieves its purpese, which s 1o

The Board
- Srratesy wpdates

CEO e repert
- Presentations by the Group ~4R Drector
ety and function presentations
et} yﬂe engagerrant survey
ote ts

ISlelds -\.err:ir‘rees

consistently deliver value Oﬁd rewsid s
stacenoiders oy rraxing o difference to dur
cclieagues, customers and communties,
reviewing and ersuring the :mp'emem*ﬂwo..
of the Group's strategy. the Board ensures
thot the cbiectives of our purpose are met
whie 050 taking into account the risks and
opportunities fcc-mg the Group.

UJ [l SR ]

wr Boord Committees aiso piay an
u'npo't-:m it roie in moentoring oJ- culture:
Rercuneration Committes meceives
updates from the G oup HRE Director thot
g’O'J‘de ar overview of pav StrucTures

2018 UK Corcorate Goverrance Code
-‘trﬁe Code; emuhasises the impartance of
he roe of the Soara regording culture, with
spechc recommendations that the Board
assesses and monitors. Our decentralised ~
model means that culture is embedded :in across the Groud Oﬁg tnel argnmert
our busiresses, 2acn of which hos its own it O‘Jr PUTROSE, vQIUes: anc “’tm‘e:\i‘-
ANigue aspets whos we believe are oritica! tﬁ“ e me \J\?MM”PE 1(: erore Tnat
te *he Gutonery Gnd eTpowerment 13 The reievant policies and procnces are
dnderpirs tne Grodp's success. Howsver, A, r‘SlgFent ot QU; if.]weg
There a'e COre 50 vred values across aur - Aedit Corrmitres hios N
sinestes: teLpect, cuntinuous ~ontio’s 07d CoNtTILOLS OTtess 10 Inter N
orovement and accountaslity. audit, both of whic~ can givean )
) md\fotlcy“ of cuiture, pr*rt calorly noTTiNg
nenany negat've eenents that dens
aign wthtne Group's cultere,

~tof ivarna.

“yi

Duning tre year, the Boord has mentored
Lture i a nammoes of woys. This inciudes

business visits, presemtations from Sector
iecdership, strately review sessions os wel
as i Htes nn penole anid o aMum from ihie
Group HR D rectur. duccessully scaling up
aur value-odd model requires constant

evziution, ang our cuiture hos a critical roie

Employee engagement

Tme Boord i comritted 10 engaging
w 1F er olovees ang has e
Cyes @Ngage Tert Tmetmads spec ed

~sigered th

e mtelin
by tre Code put feit thot alternatve
metnods oTe moTe AUETOpnate. Qiver

to play =supporteg growth. Nﬁen -

tne Droup's cecer traised mode and s

i strateges, cu tural

Roard nos
artant gred of focus and

: waread, the
Aued with Q rmurt-focetas app dadn

ot worktorme

Dre ottre key ways 'noanich the Board
cxnenpenence and evaluate the cutuels
trirough neeting with caleagues across ar
nusnesses. We were dedghted 1o travel _3

\ Fhei cnm
005 weth Thels Dy

bW ndy City

e ; R weortkioete, togetner wth 51;@"\1; ZRhaTeln
¢ Hercules Aftermarket o T T
- o comrmun cotan trorm Mlls

t Su'wv (s ouss 0T

e pan provided

o *,Hn Vel

Tre Sooid faels wel

views gnd matters ang Uses G comLnation

of methods to comngly with the Code”

requirements

- Regular updates 1o the Bourd ot every
seheduled Boad rmeeting on peonie
matters. Over the post veor, colieague
wellbeing and rnorcie have been areas of
keen focus,

- Coleague, tolent ond cutture upndotes
frar e Group AR Directo,

- Tre Remuneraticn Comimitise reviews
workforce pay proctizes across Diploma,

- The Board reguiary undertckes site visits.

- Executive Board nembers reguiarly
interoct with dividual busitesses an
cur flat structure ensures stong channels
of comnmrunication

- The Board was p"efehfed with the
cutcoves of trie Group Coliecgue

Ergogement Survey and discussed thewe
109&1*@ wrth key iearnings. We were
deligrited wit™ the high porticipation rate
and engagement ndex score’ the full
esults cf the zurvey are detaiec on pages

=

361c 27
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BOARD OF DI
BOARD AGTI

Set out below are some of the key gotivities, matters cornaidered and « ons made by the Board in the year.

Strategy & strategic execution Finance Operations

-
25% 20% 10%

Reguarly reviewed the Group's Received 125 on the Group’s financial Regulur updates from the CEO
performance against the strote performznee Monitzred and discussed the impact
including actiors taken in respect of . Approved the 2023 budget; monitored of Covid-19 on the Group's operations.
managirg the pandemic. performance against the 2022 budget - Modem Slavery Statement.
Prezertations by the Corporate through regular presentations from the Sector presentotions.

Develapment Director and Sector CFO.

leadersk'p on strategic priorities and Assessed and approved the proposed

exec_ticn against those pricrities. dividend payments, balancing the views

Reviewed ard discussed our £5G strotegy of varicus stakeholders.

and npproach, Delivering Voiue investor relations: received regulor reports

Resporsibly. including share register movernent and

Reviewed and approved the Group's feedback from analysts and investors.

MEA and business aeveloprment Presentations from Tax and Treasury

actrit’es, reorganisaticns and various Functions.

other projects. - Control of Treasury and Tax policies.

Strategs roview session,

nual Report 2022




Colleagues & culture

15%

- Reviewed Group Colieague Engagement
Survey.

- Received reports or work “crce wellbeing
throughout the year

- USAsite visits.

- Talert and succession update

- Whistleblowing reparts.

15%

Received reports on the macroeconormic
environment, werld events and emerging
trends.

Annual risk review: review of principal
risks to ensure they rermain appropriote
together with mitigoting activity;
reviewed and approved the inclusion

of new and emerging risks.

Quarterly risk updates.

Cybersecurity briefing,

Annual Insurance Review,

0

Governance

MIIAIIA

15%
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AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

Key matters discussed

- Reviewed and agreed the scope of audit
Anne Thorburn 5/5 work to be undgertaken by the external
{Chair) auditor and agreed the terms of

- engagement and fees to be paid for the
Andy Smith 5/5 external gudit.

Member Meetings attended

Reviewed the Annual Report & Accounts
and received reports from the CFO and
the external auditar on the key
accourting issues and areas of significant
wogerment.
The role of the Committee Reviewed the repert on compliance with
The Audit Commiltee is responsible for the UK Corpotate Governance Code 2018
ensuring that the Group maintains a strong and reports on the provision of
control environment. it provides effective information to the auditor.
governance over the Group's finarcial Reviewed the report from the CFO on the
reparting, including oversight and review controls in ploce 1o mitigate fraud risk.
of the systems of internal control and risk Reviewsed the Half Year Announcement
ranagement, the performance of internal and received reports frorm the external
and external audit functions, as weil as the auditor on the key accounting itz A
behavicur expected of the Group's areas of significant judgerner:
emnployees through the whistleblowing Reviewed the trading updates.
pelicy and similar codes of conduct. The Reviewed the effectiveness ¢ The Lo
Committee continues to focus on internat control and risk muanugmsn
rmenitaring and overseeing management procedures and where appris
on these improverments 1o governance, recornmendationrs to the Baard ai
cormpliance and financial sateguards. for improvernent.

irvited the Group internal &.dit T
Terms of reference can be found on Lo attend meetings to revra 1

our website at www.diplomaplc.com of the internal audit work

year and to agree the sc.
internal audit work to be carmes
following year.
Reviewed the UK Corperat= v
Code 2018 and future reporting
section 172 Companies. /it 2002
Approved the Commities
programme for 2023.
Approved the Going Crruorm s W
Staterrents.
Continued to rmonitar 15
audit referm and charg
Received training ar
external advisors on 255
reporting requiremer
Oversaw the audit perte

Geraldine Huse 5/5

Dean Finch 5/5

102 Diploma PLC Annual Report 2022




Dear Shareholder

The Audit Committse assists the Board 'n
dizcharging 14 responsibllities with regard 1o
mcnitoring the integrity of Group hnonaial
reporting, external and internal aueits and
controls. This inciuges advising on the
reappointment and independence of
external cuditors and assessing the quatty
of their services; and reviewing the
effectiveness and appropriateness of the
Company's internal aud't activities, interna
controls and rmanagement systerrs,

During the year ended 30 September 2022,
the Committee has ensured that it has had
oversight of all these areas while aso
focusing on diverse changes in the external
environment, both regulatory and political,
including any continued residuar irrpact

of the Covid-19 pandernic, which has hod

a range of implications o the risk
managament activities of the Company.

“Adapting to
a changing
environment and
new ways of working
to ensure financial
integrity and robust
and effective internal
controls.”

Sl [ - R TR e R o
S LeLn i FLG A0S BE

The Commitiee continues 1o maonitor the
uncertainties arising from these cnanges
and consider the management and
mitigaton of these risks In additicn, the
Cornmittes has rece ved reports on internal
audits for the Group's usinesses, together
~ith several deep dive sessions inciuding

in resnect of cudits of recently scquired
businesses, as well as updotes on the steps
being taken tc address internal audit
findings and zontrol ssues.

i commenrted mlast year's report that the
Cormmmitree wos mindful of the changing
governance lanZscope ond potential weight
of ant.cipcted regulation in the near future,
given the nuimber of recent formai reviews
undertake~ regarding different aspects of
corporate governance and audit market
referrn |n carticuian, we note the UK
government s proposed teforms to the audit
and corporate governance regime which
were publisted on 31 Moy 2022 and which
include the creation of o new reguiator for
the audit industry and increased disclosure
requirernents in respect of internal controls.
Im gnticipation of these reforms and under
the supervision of the Committee,
rranagernent kas ttarted planning for
expected cnanges, including prelimninary
steps ndetenmining the scope and contents
of the Compony,'s aedit and assuronce policy.

Tre Commties has oso monitored
intictives of other reguictory authorities

to orovide investors with consistent,
comparame and reliabie infarmotion on
climate-reiated and ESC matters. We are
supportive of regulanon thot enatles
Informeg investrnent deciaons and suppont
efforts to encourage harmonisaticn across
reguioton reqimes,

As Audit Char, T hove reguior conversations
with the CFO, Group Internal Audit Directos,
Graup Finoncial Controller, Group Company
Secretary & Head of Legal and alse the audit
partner at PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
(Pw), our external auditor.

Pw(C has now completed its Tifth full onnual
cycle. and we value the rigour and challenge
of its approoch. a™ pleased 1o report thot
again there bave been ne significant control
deficiencies or accounting irrequiarities
reported 1o the Committee this year. The
Committee pians to commence a retender
process for the audit during 2026/2027 for
the FY28 Annual Report and Accounts in
order to make any necessary changes to
provide-s of other services in a timely and
orgerly fashicr and to appeint an auditor
before the start of that vear as this is in the
best interests of our sharehoiders. | arn
confident tnat the Audit Committee has
carried out its duties effectively and to g
high standard during the year, providing
independent oversight with the support

of nanagerrent and assurance from the
external auditors In accordaonce with UK
regulations. PwC odheres to a rotation
policy based on best practice and the Group
engageent partner will serve a pernod of
no longer than five years. Chris Burrs
becarme the lead cudit partner for the yeaor
ended 30 September 2018 foliowing the
apoointment of Pwl, and therefore tis will
be his final gudit.

look forward to meeting sharehoiders at
the Annual Ceneral Meeting on 18 Jonuary
2023 and will be happy to resnand to any
questions ~elating to the activities of the
Audit Committze.

Anne Thorburn
Chair of the Audit Committee
21 Novermber 2022
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Audit Committee

The Cornmittee is chaired by Anne Thorburm
and comprises four Independent Non-
Executive Directors. The Committee acts
independently of the Executive Directors
and managemeant. Qur members have

a range of skilis and the Committee as o
whole has experience relevant to the Sectors
in which the Group operates. Anne has
recent and refevant financial experience,
as required by the Code

The Group Company Secretary & Head of
Legal acts os Secretary 1o the Committee.
The Executive Directors also attend
Committee meetings and subject ratter
experts gre invited 10 present on specific
topics as and when required. The
Committee met with the external cuditor
during the year, without the Executive
Directors being present.

The Audit Cormmittee confirms that the
Company hes corplied with the provisions
of the Competition & Markets Authority
Order throughout its financial year ended
30 September 2022 ond up to the date of
this report.

Financial reporting and significant

financial judgements and estimates

The Committee considered and assessed:

~ the full year and half vear resilits, and
trading updates for recommendation
1o the Board;

- the apprepriotenass of accounting
policies and proctices, as well as criveal
accounting estimates and key
judgernents: and

- whether the Annuat Report, taken as
a whole, is fair, baia~ced and
understandatle and provides the
information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group’s position and
performonrce, business mode! and
cirateqy.

The Committee considered the matters set
out telow as being significant n the context
of the consolidated financial statements Tor
tre year ended 30 September 2022 These
were discussed and reviewed with
rnanagement and the external auditor; the
Cammnittee ther chaltenged judgements
and sought clarificotion where necessary.

The Committee considered the judgeents
rrade in preparing the financial staternents,
including the aocounting for acquisitions
and associated valuation of intangiole
assets, 1he provisions for excess and
slow-moving inventory, the potentiol for
impairment of goodwill ond the
appropriateness of the Gong Concern
assurmption The Committee also reviewed
the movernents inthe Groug's defired
penefit pension schemes.

Accounting for acquisitions and
disposals

The Committes reviewed the accounting
for acquisiticns cempleted during the year,
ir oertcular tre acguisitions of R&G Fluid
Power Group and Accuscience. The
acquistions were material for the FY2Z audit
and, i accordonce witn FRS 2 (Busness
Comreimations), managernent nas
perfcrrred a ful for value exerdise for these
two aoguis toms i this year's Snonca:
statements. As part of thel- audit o7 the
Group, 1he external auditer has perforred
WaATK O

ar the Purcrvase Price Alacation (PRAY

b; the opening baance sheet gs af t-e
acguisiticn date; and

¢} audit of any material foir va ue
adiustments arising on the acguistion
halance sheet,

The Co~mittee reviewed 2~d cha'lenged
mznagerment's assessment, which also
imcluded congderation of the extena audit
findimgs. Tme Committes concuced toat
the acccunting “or these Two 2oL stions

ond the othigr Fve srmanier atqui mons s

appicoriote

The Group completed two disposals in

the year for combined proceeds of £21m
resulting in @ net profit on disposal of £7.3m.
The profit on disposal has been presented
within ocou'sition and other reloted items.

Provisions for excess and slow-
moving inventory
The Committee reviewed the report of
the CFO that set out the gross balonces,
togather with any related provision against
tne carrying value of invertory. The
Committee reviewed the bases used to
value inventory held across the Groug; they
iso considered the appropriateness of
provisions held against the carrying value
of inventory, having regord 1o the age and
volumes of inventory relctive 1o expected
usage and considering the actions taken in
esponse to sunply chain disruptians during
the year and any continued impact of the
Covid-19 pandemic.

Following its review, which alsc included
consideration of the external audit findings,
the Cormrmittee concluded that the
zrovison for excess and slow. moving
inventory & appreprate.

Impairment of goodwill
Tre Committee considered the zarrying
vaus of goodwil and tme assurmiphions
wnderdying the mpairment review. The
sudgements in reation to goodwii
mpairment .a-gely relate to the
assumptons underlying the calcugrons of
the volue in use of the cash genermting units
ICGUs) being rested for wmpairment. These
judgements gve primgrily the cacuiotion of
*he discount -otes. whicn hove increased
due 1o rising risk *ree rates and the cost of
debt, the achievability of manasernent's
forecasts ir the shart 1o nediurm t2rm
aaanst the packdros of a challenging

mMAc rOeCoNSTIC envirorment. resduai
impact of tne Covid-19 pa~dermc ond the
selection of the ong term growth rote.
Following the review, whicn aso ing uded
consideraticn of the exter izt gud fincings,
e Cormities cone woed that tre car,ing
vaue of the goodwii recorged s

coroprste,



Other audit matters

The Commitiee ols0 considered other less
material matters inciuding the voluatior of
the Group's definec penefit scheme and the
mpect of tneg key actuanal assurmptons on
The bolances. The Committes is satizfied
witn the year end position ond the
assuTptions used.

im addition 1o the anove, the Committee
alsc seeks comments fiarn the auditor on
whether the Group's businesses Tollow
appropriate policies 1o recognise material
strearms of revenue, ana their ousit work
caried oot more generatly hos assessed
whether there is any evidence of
mancgement overide of key internal
contre < designed to guard agairst froud
or materal rmisstotement.

Az puart oF its monitering of the integrity

at the financial staternents, the Committes
reviews wrether suitable accounting
policies nave bean adopted and whether
management has made appropriate
astmates ond judgenents, and seeks
suppaert from the external gudtor 1o
cssess therm.

Going Concern and Viability

The Gomg Concesn and Viability assessrment
pared by managertent [ prepenng
the assewsment, rmanagemert coried out
st testing as well as scenaric
anaysis Two scenarios were cons dered

- the baose cose ond the downsigde case. The
base case reflects actual recent Trading and
takes aeoount of any further residual impact
of Covia-19 The downside cose reflects
raore significant decling in trading, adverse
mavernents in work'ng capitor and lower

«t operating rmargn, and is

Dy manggermnant 1o be o severe
Dot pedusine scenario,

WO Dre

Tre Gioz mos arrpie guidity and covenant
neadrootr o each scenanio for both Gong

¢ Ty Stotement purposes,
orarmvites reviewed the
s under BinTing eack scetano
dawtn mianagenent's
i morespect of

Jlement are set out o page B9

L Concein can be

Engagement of the external guditor

The externa: guditor s engaged to express
an opinion on the financiol staterments of
the Group and of the Company. The audit
inclides the consideratian of the systerms

of internal finoncia. conmtrel and the gota
centained 1 the finondial staterments. to
the extent necessa-y for expressing an audit
opinion on tne truth and fairness of the
financial statemente.

During the year, the Committee carried out
an assessTent of the audit process, led by
the Chair of the Committee and ossisted by
the CFO. The assessment focused on certan
criterig that the Committee considered o
be important factors in demeonstrating an
effective audit process. Tnese factors
included the quality of the audit process
and the robustness of chalenge to
management, key audit risks ang how these
nave been addressed, the planning and
execution of the acdit end the role of
management in the audit process.

The Comimittee was satisfied that the
PwC audit of tne Company and Group hod
provided a robust and effective audit and
ar appropriate independent chaollenge of
the Group's senior rronagement. It also
supoorted the work of the Committee
through dear and objective communication
on developrrents in financial reporting
and governance.

Tme Committee also oversow the audit
partner rotation process as Chris Burns, tre
current lead audit partaer, is dus to rotate
ofter this FY22 year end, A replacement has
neen igentified and has been shadowing the
oLdit process to ensure a sooth handover

O
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AUDIT COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Non-audit services

The Committee has approved the Group's
internal guidelines covering the type of
non-audit work that can be carried out by
the external quditer of the Group, inlight

of the reguiation set out in the U Audit
Directive and Audit Regulation 2014 (the
Regulations) and the Financial Reporting
Council (FRC} Revised Ethical Standard 2019

The Regulations substantially curtail those
nor-audit services that cor be provided by
the auditor to the Group and in particu.ar
prohibits all tox refated services, inctuding
compliance services as well as general
advice and all consultancy and advisary
services. The Reguiations stipulate that
Board approval is -equired if eligible
non-audit services, such as due diligence
and sirmiar assurance services, exceed 30%
of the prior year Group audit fee and the
Company may not allow eligibie non-audit
services to exceed /0% of the Group oudit
fee, calculated on a -oiling three-year basis.

The CFO does not hove deegated authority
1o engoge the external oudtor to carry out
any non-audit work, but "nust seek approval
trom the Chair of the Audit Commuttee.

Taxation services are not provided by tre
Group's currert audit fir—; o range of
ditferent firrrs are used for the provision

ol tax advice and any assistonce with tax
compliance mctters generally. In addtion,
due difigence exercises on aoguisitions and
simnilar transacticrs are not provded by the
auditor, but are placed with other firms,

The externa ouditor i retaimed to carry out
assurance services to the Commattze in
connection with ggreed .po~ procedures’
on the Group's naif yeor consoliaated
financial staternents (£28.000;. The external
auditor also provides access 10 118 Viewpoint
technical subscription service (17,2000,

e e P =T T ea ST
e O CoorT I MUl Annad 2ot J0070

With the exception of these services,

Pw(C has mot provided any non-audit
services to the Group or its subsidiaries
and has confirmed its independence to
the Audit Committee. Further information
is set out in note 25 1o the consolidated
financial statements.

The Committee assures itself of the
auditor's independence by receiving regular
teports from the external auditor which
provide details of any assignments and
reloted fees carried out by the auditor in
addition to its normat audit work, and these
ore reviewead ogainst the above guidelines.
PwC has reconfirmed its independence for
the current financial year.

Risk management and internal control
The principal risks and uncertainties that
are currently judged to have the most
significant impaoct on the Group's long-term
performance are set ot in a separate
section of the Strategic Report on Internal
Control and Risk Management on pages
80tc 88

The Committee is responsible for reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's systern of
internal control, The systerr of internal
cortrol is designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to ochieve
business objectives and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance
agcinst material misstaternent or ioss.

The Groug nas the necessary procedures

in ploce to ensure that tnere is an ongoing
process for identifying, evaluating and
rranaging tne principaf risks to the Group.
These procedures are in line with tne FRC's
gudance Tne Board has established a clear
organisationa: structure with defined
guthority levels,

The day-to-day running of the Group’s
business is delegated to the Executive
Drectors of the Oroup who are supported
bv the neads of each business Sectar and
functional heads of the Group.

Key financial and operational measures
refating to revenue, cash and recevables
are reported on o weekly basis. Detailed
management accounts and key
performence indicators are prepared
monthly using a robust proprietary reportng
system to collect anc analyse finoncial dota
in a consistert ‘ormat. Monthly results are
measured against both budget and half
yeor reforecosts which hove been approved
and reviewed by the Board. Al copito!
expenditure above predefined amounts
must be supported by a paper prepared by
management.

All financial dota is taken directly fromr each
business’ trial balance held in their iocai ERP
system and recnalysed and formatied in o
separate Group management reporting
system, operated by e Group Finance
department. Thete i no rekeying of financial
dota by tme Group pusinesses 1 report
monthly financial results. The Group Finance
departiment continues 1o deveiop the
functionality of this managenent reporting
system t¢ provide greater insignts into the
finoncial and operotional actuities of tre
Group's businesses.

The Groug's internol auditor reguiarly oudits
the bose data at each business to ensure it
is propetly reported through to e Group
management reporting system.

As part of the year end clase process, each
busiress is required to complete o set
asseasment that evaluates the financ.al
control environment in thei- business,
designed tc identify weaknesses in controis
These assessments are criticaly reviewed
by the Group Interna Audit Directar and
evaluated os part of regu.gr Interra)
Auditreviews

A surmmary ‘or eoch busniess it prepared
for the Audit Cormmmnttee. in addw'on, sermar
management oF each business s requred
o confirt its adherence with
GCocounting poiicies, processes
of internal conitro! oy e
representation ietter.




Tre Cormittee has reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group's sk
rranagement and internal control svstems
for the pariod from 1 October 2021 tc the
date of this report. Toking into account tne
matters set out on pages 82 1o 88 reiating
+o principal risks and uncertointies and the
rencrts fror the Group internal Audit
Director, the Baard, w'th the advice of tne
Commitiee, is satisfied that the Group has
in piace effective risk management and
internal control systems.

Internal audit
Trne Group maintaing a1 internat audit
depariment which reports directly to both
the CFO ond Chair o the Audit Commrittee.
The department comprises a Group Irtena
Audis Directer ond o Group Internoi Auditor
based at the Group's offices in Lo

In daruary 2022, the Group Internal Audit
Director presented his aoudit pion for the
vear to the Comrittee for its appiova..
Increasingly during tne year internal audit
undertook audits in person as trave
restrct'ons were lifted ir a number of key
iurisdictions. The departrent continued to
eftectively rely on renote vis'ts with the use
of apoooriote communication techrology
whers site visits we e not possb'e.

Tre scope of work carried out by inte nal
audit generaily focuses on the internal
financiel, operational and comnliance
controls operating within eack business,
including sk manoagement activ.ties ano
business process improvernents. Formal
written reports are prepared o the res it
o each internal oudit st oot set ot
nternol control weaknesses/risk < identified
during their work, together watn
recommendations to improve the intes
cuAtrol ervironment and mitigate these
weaknesses/risks. These repo ts are timel v
and regularly discuzsed with senior
management wthin the Group The re
are gist chared vath the exterol ouditore,

Ci

A the end of the financial year, the Group
mternal Audit Director formally reports to
the Committee or: the results of the internal
audit work carried out by his departrment
durng the year. The Committee reviews
management’s resoonses To matters raised,
ncluding the time taken to resolve such
miatters. Updated -eports on progress
aganst the plan are provided at regular
intervals and the Audit Chalr also meets
separately with the Group Internal Audit
Director at legst twice a year 1o review some
of *he department’s reports and discuss
their findings.

There vere no significant or high-risk
motters identified in the interna! audits
undertaken during the current financial
year. Several recommendations were aga'n
made this year to the businesses in regard
toimplementing adequate ond effective
internal contrals and procedures amed
aUIMProving existing prosesses aroLnd
cyoersecurity, inventory management

and procurerment.

The Committee conducted the annual
review of the effectiveness of 1he internal
audit department, including its oudit plan,
genera performance and re-ationship with
tme external auditors. Based on its review,

tne Cormrmittee v sotished with the
effectiveness of the Group's internat cudi*
function, specificaly that the internal audit
department s sufficiertly independent of
saecUtive menagerment and nas sutficient
resources and scope that is appropriate for
e size and nature ot the Gro.p.

Whistleblowing

The Committee alss monitors the adeguacy
of the Group’s whistleb owing policy, which
provides the framework 1o encourage and
give empioyees confidence 1o blow the
whistle’ and report irregularities. The polcy,
together with hotline posters, are placed on
site noticeboards acrass the Group.
Employees are encouraged to raise concerns
via the confidentiol muitilingual hotline,
which is managed by an independent
externa’ company and s available 24,7,

385 gays o year.

All reports are provided 1o the Group
Company Secretary & Head of Legal for
review, 1o ensure that they are appropriately
investigated - with the support of internal
avdit and external resource, if recuired.
Most matters reported through the
whistlebiowing service re ate 1o perscanel/
HRE mnatters and, while these are not areas
for review by the Committes, such matters
are duly investigated 'n tne same manner
as any other issue raised.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member Meetings attended

4/4

David Lowden
{Chair)

575

5/5

Anne Thorburn

Andy Smith

5/5

a’uldine Huse .

Dean Finch ﬁ

John Nichclas 7

caledonmoat

The role of the Committee

The Nomination Committee reviews the
composition of the Board and principal
Cormmittees, considering skitls, knowledge,
experience and diversity requirements before
mraking appropriale recommendations to
the Buard regarding ary changes. It also
manages suceassion plenning for Directers
and the Group Company Secretary ond
oversees succession plenning for senior
leadership across the Group.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaplc.com

108 Diploma PLC Arnual Report 2022

Key matters discussed

- Recraitment of a Chief Financial Officer
and broader succession planning for
Chairs of Audit and Rernuneration
Committec.
Consideration of a detailed skills,
experience and diversity matrix that
sought to identily recruitment priorities
kased onidentified gaps, industry
expectations ond cood practice.
Facilitating a mare diverse st of potential
condidates ahead of the search for two
Mon Exerutive Directors by setting clear
objectives for the external search
consultants and ensuring a clear
articulation of the company’s ongoing
commitment to improving diversity in role
specifications
Consideration of the contributions o
effectiveness of the Non-Execttic
Directars sesking re-eteciiar ot (e 20
Anrual General Megt
recommen itz :
shareholder:

prior e i

ooamd




Dear Shareholder,

I arr pieased 1o set out beiow the -eport on
the activities o* the Nomination Committee
during the vear.

The Board is of the view that 't is essentiof
1o have an cppropriate mix of experience,
expertise, diversity and independence. Such
diverse attributes enable the Board as a
whiole to provide informed opinians and
advice on strategy and relevant topics,
thereby discharging its duty of oversight.
Appcintrments 1o the Board are mode
following consideration of the experience
and expertise of existing Directors, any
reguired skiil sets or competencies, and the
strategic requirements of the Group. During
2022, the composition of tne Board changed
sligntly, reflecting: (1) John Nicholas
stenping down frorm the Board and (i} the
geparture of Borbara Gibbes.

A fundomental respansitility of the
Committee is to ensure plans are in prace
for orderly succession to the Board, as well
as our Group Company Secretary and sen:or
management pasitions, and the Committee
detates these regularly. The main focus of
the Comrmittee duting this past year has
been on Board succession planning,
ncuding the oppoimtment of our pew Chie?
Fimanciol Officer and the secrch for the
Chairs of the Audit ang Remunerction
Committees to ensure these positions are
appa nted i1 time for an arderly handover.
The Committee continually monitors the
bamnce on the Beard to ensure we have the
right combination of skills, experience and
knowleage cons'stent with the iong-term
strategy of the Compary. Thic allows us to
dentify where further focus is needed in the
coring years and beyond.

We are roindful of the discussions around
mmoroving diversity and inclusien, together
with the targets set by the Hampton-
Alesander Review and the Parker Review.
Foiowing the departyre of Barbara Gibbes
at the end of the hnancial year, two out of
ceven Dhrectors (28 579%0) ore women It s
ihe Board's airm 1o meet the targets set by
the Hamoton-4A.exanoer and Packe reviews
Jdeaiing with gender ond ethric diversity
resoectively, whicn s fecsibie ghven cLirent
SLUICSSRIDN RION5.

e
T ol s

[vo oo 2L famn s

The Board will maintain oversight of the
range of activities the Grous is pareuing
aimed at increasing the diversity of our
workforce - Including the executive pipeline
that is essential for Executive Directar
saccession planning. We have written
elsewhere (see page 40) about our Group-
wide approach to diversity and inclusion,
which emanates fremn the Board anc
impacts the approach of the Nomination
Cormmittee.

The FRC's guidance on boord effectiveness
recognises o oreadth of diversity 1net goes
beyond just gender and race, and inciudes
personol attributes including inteliect,
critical assessment, judgement, courage,
honesty and toct; and the ability to Lsten
and forge relationships and deveiop trust.
This ensares thot @ board is not comprised
of lixe-minded individuals. The Committee
ogrees that diversity is vital when reviewing
te compositicn of the Board and setting
the criterio for the recruitment of new
appointees, alongside succession planming
activities. External search consultants are
expected 1o make every effort to put
‘orward diverse condidates for new Boord

positions. Whilst appointments will comtinue

1 be raade or merit and against objective
critena, it remnains the Committee’s
intention that the divers'ty on the Boord
vl continue Te increase over time.

The Committes has also maintained its
focus on the executive succession pipeling
and seniar management succession plans

within the Group, ~eflecting 1ts responsibilty

1o ensure appropricte plons are in place.

David Lowden

Chair of the Board and Nomination
Committee

21 Novernber 2022

“Ensuring the right mix

of skills and
experience to deliver
long-term value for
our stakeholders.”
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Nomination Committee

The Nomingtion Committee is chaired by
David Lowden, Board Chair. The Committee
comprises the Non-Executive Directaors and
meets as necessary te discharge its
responsibilities.

The Group Company Secretary acts as
Secretary 1o the Committee.

The Committee reviews the compaosition

of the Board ond principal Committees,
considenng skills, knowledge, experience
ond diversity requrements before moking
appropriate recemmendations to the Board
reqarding ary changes. It also manages
successon pianning for Directors and the
Group Compary Secretary, and oversees
succession planning for senior leadership
across the Gronn.

The Comrnittes’s rote ang responsibiiities are
set out in its Termmis of Reference, which wers
reviewes dusing the vear and approved by
The Board.

Process for Board appointments

induction and professional development
The Cha', gssisted by the Gioup Comrpary
Sacietary, is responsibe for ensuring thet
there is  properiy constructed and timely
induction for new Directors upon joining the
Board. Upon appointment, all new Directors
are provided with g comprehansive
induction, where they meet with key
members of management and familiarise
themselves with all core aspects of the
Group, its businesses and the markets in
which it operates.

Directors ore encouraged, wherever
possidle, 1o visit the Group's sites so that
they can get a better understanding of
the business and interact with employees
Whiie travel was restricted and compiex
during the Covid-19 pandernic, site visits
by individual Directors (and the Board as
o whole) have resumed and altowed
Directors 10 see Diploma's safety and
sustainabiiity processes, 1o tolk with local
managernent and workforces and 1o assess
hov effectively Diploma’s cuiture is
omrnunicated and embedded at al! levels.

The Chair also has the responsbility of
ensuring that Directors ece've training or
a continual basis in support of their ongoing
development. This Training is provided by
way of technica: updates, reports and
briefings orepared for Board meetings.
Directors have fuil access to our carporate
adviscrs as well as a reqular ond
corrprehensive supply of finanaal,
operational, strategic and reguiatory
information 1o nelp thern discharge their
responsibilities.

During the year, the Board held a strategy
review sessior 1o conmirm tee Company’s
strategic goals as wel 35 receving detailed
dJpdates on operations a~d support
functions.

Step 1

The Committee
reviews and
approves an
outline brief and

role specification
and appoints a
search ogent to
facilitate the search

Step 2

A Committee
member

discusses the
specification with
the independent
search agent, who
prepares an initial
lznglist of
candidotes

Step 3

The Committee
then defines a
shartlist of
candidates and
we hold interviews

Step 4

The Committee
makes
recommendation
to the Board forits
consideration

Step 5

Following Board
approval the
appointment is
announced in line
with the
requirernents of the
FCA's Listing Rules



; Boord Thalr
srehiensive
ot in place te
o the role,
bighlishis are

Calendar of activities

November 2021 January 2022 March 2022

Meeting all Board Handover with Visit to Windy
colleagues, both outgoing Chair City Wire in
individually and Chicago, and
collectively Hercules
Afterrmarket in
Meeting Group Louisville in the USA
heads of functions

1%

Visit to Shoal Group,
IS Group and
Clarendon in

the UK

Diploma PLC An-cual Report

April 2022

Chair Q&A
published in the
Purple Portal, the
Group’s newsletter
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

Onbearding processes

The decentralised nature of the Group has
always made induction processes cormpiex.
The pandemic led us to reconsider how
these processes can be conducted
effectively. Customarily there wouild have
been face-to-face rmeetings with key
executives and managerment, introductions
to their direct reparts, one-to-ones following
the initial meetings, and site visits arranged
to key businesses. Now parts of the
induction plan are conducted via video calls;
particularly where key people are located
outside of Europe. This permits Directors to
have considerably greater exposure 1o the
various businesses and personnet and we
are plegsed that we can once again
encourage Directors 1o visit our businesses
and oppreciate our culture and colleagues in
person as well as continuing to develop their
understanding of each business.

Kngth of tenure

Succession planning

Tre Committee formaity reviews succession
planning for the Beard, Group Cormpany
Secretary and Head of Legal, and senior
rnanagemernt ot least once each year,
taking into account the challenges and
opportunities facing the Group and the
background, skils and expertise thot will be
required by the Group in the future. During
2022, foliowing the appointrnent of the new
Board Chair, the Committee undertock a
rmore thorcugh analysis of the Board's
competencies. The Committee also
considered how the Board would be reguired
o evalve 1o pe fit for the future, asweil as
any potentiol gops that may need to be
flled through succession or training.

Trie CEO manages the development of
sucression plans for executive
rmanagement, and these are overseen by
the Comittee The CEOC and Group HR
Diractor presented g succession paanning
update 1o the Board in January 2022,

The Committee is aware of the importance
ofidentifying critical roles within the
Dusinesses to ensure we retain and maotivate
key talent and have the necessary skiils for
the future. Overall, it was clear that we have
a good executive and management
succession planning process and,
importantly, succession is belng act'vely
managed by the Executive tearn to achieve
the desired long-term outcomes.

The standard term far Non-Executive
Directors is three vears. They normally serve
for @ maximum of nine years, which is split
across three terms of three years each. All
Directors are subject to annuat re-election.
With only specific exceptions that may be
necessary to ensure Board continuity,
Non-Executive Directors shali not stand for
re-election after they have served for the
period of their independence, as determined
by applicakble UK standards, of nine years

2015 206 2077

2022 2023 2024

2025 2026 2027 2028 202% 2030

David Lowden
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Anne Thorburn!
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Board evaluation

The Board conducts an annuat evaluation of its performance and that of 1its committees and, in accordance with goed practice, engoges
an independeit third-party fadlitatar 1o assist i 1his process every three voars. For the veor ended 30 September 2022, the evoluation of

the Boord o5 o whole and of s committees waos undertaker interna ly, ied by the Board Chair. Board members completed guestionnaires
reoarding the operation and effectiveness of the Boord and s commuttees. Findings were cotiated b the Group Campany Secretary and
the Board Char discussed the conclusicns and recorrmendations separately with each Director,

Tre perio-mance of the Non-Executive Directors wos reviewed by the Board Cnair The performance of the Executive Girectors was
reviewed by the Board Cheir and the Nom-Exscutive Directors and the resuits of the 2027 evaluation process were considered by the Board.
The conclusion wos that the Board continued to function well, and the onboarding of the Board had been well received, resulting in
improvernent to Boare processes and workplans. Directors opercted i an atmoesphere of open and constructive debate with a good
breadth of skills, experence, a~d viewpaoints. Foliowing the evaluation, the below recommendations were made:

Recommendation

Action

Censider the diversity of the Board, frorm both o gender and
ethnicity standpoint.

MNarmination Cornrmittes to addrese diversity requirements n
successan planting and during the Non-Executive Director
recruitment process.

Continue te crallenge and support on the progress of DVR actions

Consider £SG skitlsets during the hon-Frecutive Directo” recruitment

process cragtion of an ESG Correr'trec s weli as enhanced focus on

climate-rewagted financia. risks,

Improve infermation shared with the Boors to enhance visikility on
certain topics and improve decision-rnaking.

Board papers to include executrve surmimaries to bring focus 1o
discussions, ond Secior presentations to the Board to include key
mdicotors of customer and supplier performance.

Tre Company expects to update shorehiclders on the progress maode inre at'or to tre matters identified above in its 2023 Annual Report.

Key areas for development

The below recommendations wese vade foilowing the 2021 external Boar performance evaluatizn,

Recommendation

Action

Consider increasing the size of the Board and bringing in further
s relevant 1o Diploma's size and operations.

NI
Al

Momination Cormmittee reviewed t1ne composition of the Board
and incorporated This into succession plamning.

Roard train ng programme 1o be evoived.

Ldd hiong sess’ons inctuded s patt of annual caiendar as weli as
pespoke & -5 Tror adyisors as required.

Ernnicyee engagerent 1o be reviawed.

oreased murrbher of sive wisits, with Non-ErecLtive Directors
conducting these ind'viduary on olcason and providing feedback
o e Boord.

Board scheduie 1o he jeviewed.

: N the evening prior 12 neetings included to cover
specfc areas of focus or concern 2ne perit further informmal
engager-ent with key rorageTer t
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE REPORT

Member
Andy Smith (Chair)

Meetings attended

/6

6/6
6/6

Anne Thorburn

David Lowden

Geraldine Huse 6/6
Dean Finch 6/6

John Nicholas 11

The roie of the Committee

The Committes, on behalf of the Board,
ogrees oll aspocts of the rernuneration

aof the Executive Directors. i agrees the
strategy, direction, and policy framework
for the rermuneration of the senior
gxecutives who have significant inffuence
over the Group's ability to meet its strategic
objectives. The Committee olsc oversses

all workforce rermnuneration policies.

Terms of reference can be found on
our website at www.diplomaple.com
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Key matters discussed

- Approved Rermurneration Comimittes work
programme for 2022,
Raviewed the AGM 2022 votes on the 2021
Rermuneration Committee Repeort.
Reviewed and proposed the new
Directors” Remuneration Policy, and as a
result, proposed amendrments 1o the rules
of the Diploma PLC 2020 PSR
Approved the service contract for the
new CFO.
Approved anrual performance borus
targets and the subsequent bonus awards
far 2022,
Approved new Perfarmance Share Flan
(PSP awards for Executive Directors and
Group senior managerment.
Confirmed the vesting percentages for
the PSP awards made in Decermber 2019,
which erystallised in 2022,
Reviewed Executive Directors’ solaries,
pensions, and benefits.
Reviewad the fees of the Chair and
Norn-Executive Directars.
Reviewed remuneration framewaork <o
Exzcutive Team and senior manags iz
in the operating businesses.
Reviewed workforce remmuneration
fromework,
Approved the 2022 Remuneratic
Committee Report.




Dear Shareholder

As Chair of the Board Remuneration
Committee (Committee), | arr plecsed
present our Directors’ Rernuneratior Report
[DRR) for the year ended 30 Septembes
2027 and our revised Remuneration Policy
tor which snareholder opproval wil: be
sought at the Janucry 2023 AGM.

Context and approach to remuneration
Ou:r peopre lie gt the heart of cur success,
As our business grows and becomes more
CoMziex, our peopie, teams and
crganisation must grow with 1, It s wital
that we have the right caiibre of people and
thot we incentivise exceliert pe-formance
and reward them wnen they do. On poge
18, Dip'ema’s appreach to remuneration

is illustrated showing how strateay,
performance ond reward oligr. in a
decent-aisec Graun, we work nord to
balomce alignment wth local accourtablity
and agility, Dur reward pelcies ond
practices have supported the growth of the
business well over the years. During thes
policy period, our performance has bee—
excehent and cur talerted management
tearm have doubled the size of the buainess.

“Reinforcing alignment
of strategy and
reward, 2022 was
a very strong year
of performance,
strategic execution
and consequently
reward. Long
term growth and
shareholder returns
are excellent.

Our plans remain
ambitious and we are
pleased to set out our
Remuneration Policy
for the next phase

of growth.”

It is ogainst this backdrop that we hove
considerad our remnuneration policy for the
upcoming three yvears.

2022 performance and pay

The Diploma team has delivered another
year of strong finencicl results, odding to
the Group's long-term track record of
excellent business performance and
shareholder returns. Orgonic growth has
been driven by revenue initictives, positive
demand, and pricing. Alongside this,
implementation of our strategy continues
apace with the acquisition of new
businesses to oring new capabilities and

opportunities to drive future arganic growth.

Witk regards to scaling, it has been ¢ year
of excellent progress building infrastructure
for scale, developing the torget operating
rodel, and evolving the structures,
copabiity ond culture of the Group.

Exceliert delivery against our strategic
pricrities of growth, scaling and Delivering
Value Responsibly have resulted in strong
performance {shown in table on poge 119).
Adiusted operating profit (+29%), reported
revenue (+269%) and free cash (+11%)

ol exceeded annual bonus targets {on poge
120}, resulting in a full bonus poyment of
125% of salary for both Jonnry Thomson
znd Barocra Gibbes.

Qur :ong-term performance continues 1o
create excellent sharehoider returns. Our
trree-year compound annual growth rote
(CAGR) tor adjusted earnings per share
{EPS) Is 19%. This exceeds the performance
target maximum of 14%, and the return
an odjusted trading copitol empicyed
BICE B} is 17.2% meaning that the
underoin applying to our PSF is 0
the Group's Fnoncial model and meets the
Board's expectation. Our resative three-yvear
arehoider return (TSR] pertormance
is 1 the Q1st percentile o FTSE 250

Toanies (exciuding financal services and
astrment trusts), ronking 15 out of 158

e with

tota sh

the Performance Share Paan (PSP (PSP

20PN has vested at masimumn “or Johany

Trerrcon ard Barbora Ginbes, as wel as al!
mer PSP porticiponts.

mpanies Bosed an these excelient results,

Johinny Thomson's tolal compensation
tor 2022 [shown in the Single Figure toble
on page 129) is £2.8m {2021 £5.2m). The
difference versus 1ost year is mainly due
1¢ lower share price onpreciaticn.

in line with the Code, the Committee
reviewed indivigual Directors’ incentve
olan outcomes and overall renureration
considering the Group’s Lnderkving
performance. We have not rade ony
adjustments to olr rerruneration schemes
as o result of Covid, no furlough support
was taken, and no discretional adjustrrents
have been appiied to outcomes.
Accordingly, the Committee = satisfied
that the incentive plan cutcomes and the
tota; remuneration receved by Executive
Directors in respect of the year ended

30 September 2027 are consistent witn the
levels of company performance deliveres
and that the Remune-otion Folicy is
aperatlng as ntended

Appointment of new CFO

Chris Davies joined Dipora as CFO on

I November 2022 a*ter Barbara Gibbes

lett the Company on 30 Septermnber 2022,
Having played an impertant rale in helping
to steer Diplorra througs the nandemic an g
bullding strong Toundatians for the future,
1the Committee deteirined 10 treat Bacara
as a good leaver and her remure: ation
arrangements on desarture werg in
accorgdance with the Remmunergtion Folicy
and piar rules. He: exit arrongeents are
set out on poge 129,

We apponted Crels folowing a throrougn
mrocess, which consider s intermal and
externa candidotes. Diplomawas Barbara's
frst FISE Board eppointrrent ond hee
pockage was set accordingry, Chris’ package
s corrmensurgte with his c-xfje' ence o8 an
establshed CFO with ar E:)fCH| lat i aielad
record in secert-olzed cervioe- ed,
muti-national organisaton:. it reficcts the
nciensing size ond comrocr ty of Diplema
and the imporicnt support be will provoe

1 the delivery of strategy, busimess
performance and a robust Ananc @ oo
frorw:warv This Naw,evm LT Dmance
withir the cormpany wﬁ o cfar
package. The detoite of Cheis® packege o
iaid out on poge 24, Consiste™t wth o
po'icy, Chris recetved ouy oUt ovearas |
form of cash, Diplora snares ang O
PSF grante to corrpensate hiv
the variable rermraneranion o
mas surrendered noordsr

Paymenis tax<e 2oCount O

Ol ceort

M
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
CONTINUED

the rermuneration foregone nciuding tre
nature, vesting dates and performance
requireimants attached to that
rermunerction and payments will not exceed
the expected value neing forfeited. Exact
omounts wit be finglised foliowing the
publication of his grevious employer's resuits
and will be disclosed in next yeor's DRR.

Remunergtion in the workforce

The skiil and dedication of Diploa's
colleagues lie at the heart of our success
The Group achieved outstanding ievels -:)f
colleague engagement cgain this yez-
(more information or page 36 1¢ 37).
Rermuneration in Diplorra provides o coretul
balance that enables iocal decision-rmaking
in line with our decentralised pusiness
model, whilst ensuring guidonce and
governance from the Group, and incuding
areview o pay equity, which i ong of the
Group's ESG priorities.

The CEQ pay ratic for 2022 (detail on cage
135) has redufed from 180:1 1o 1291, Tne
orincipal reason for the reduction is .ower
share price apprecigtion fram morket
reoverments. The median pay for LK
colleagues has remained at o siclar eve
£29,074 (2021: £29,030), with the aaaition,
of ca. 400 new empioyees from UK
acguisitions. i we exclode ermplovess winic
joined trough Jcquisitons, the media-

pay for the LK workforce has inties ’;ed
mo;gmc! y 1o £2%,550.

Tnig vear's Group reward goidones to the
businesses focused or locking atte
cobeagues. The first oricrity wos focusirg on
ngues affected by inflationarny pr
arsing Trom the rmacro-envizonrment
ir-cfud?r‘lg enerdy orices ard othar ng's
zoste of iving. For the firet tme tne Groor's
governance incuyced an ndecenaent reve
wf colledgues infower paid roles < E40x oer
annurr), and these oo \:::JCUE— 2sar
average increcss of 7.5% hare tren e
overall workiorce increass

ol ures

Fes

For senior leaders, the
rermuneration is recogn
responsiiites in a growitg Dusis
future growtn ahianes 1o

ncentivising
Dipio™c’s st-ategy. We -ema™ 707
EN5UTing Wwe IO retdir ton 1oiert

compettiye mterngticng arretc,

1 Diolomrn

PLC Arrmuc

e

The 2022 overal: Dose soiary Ncreqse across
the Group is 7% for the workforce (2021,
4%), inciuding senior managers. The
managarnent tearm and Committee will
continue 1o review total compensatien
prooctvely in order to ensure our wider
workforce is fairly rewarded. The Comimittee
considers workforce perspectives when
setting Rernureration Policy, Trecutive
Director compensation and overseeing
senior Mmanagement compensation
framewaorks.

Remuneration policy review

The Cormmmittee completed a
comprehensive policy review in 2022, The
review process is set out on page 120 and
covered a number ot key factors.

The Group has increased consideratly in size
and complexity in this policy period shown
inthe dagra on page 120}, Since the
apoontrment of our CEO in 2019, the Group
has doobled in size from o comibingtion of
ctrong organic growth, strategic execution
and the acquisition of 25 strategua'ly
smportant businesses, Sharehclders have
cenefited and Diclemnc has grown from
FTSE 185 to FTSE 11 over the pencd ond the
Group's plons rermain ambitious. Desigring
OHCy to relognise the iIncreased
bities to ottract, retamn and

ise managerment for the nert phase
roveth wos  top priority.

S0

*
(e

ESC s increasingy importanit to all our
stokecioers and woe wish to ntroduce
Targets inte our variable pay. Enscing that
Eonus Mmeasures ore nigorous, spedific,
stretching and go beyong the 'day on' is
arcessertal principle of reward in Diplomna.,

noes under way to develop De vering
Valle Pes as part of the strategy
and we have set some non-finandal Kz
OMITITETS (STC R ON paae 59% it more
T : NIese rMmedsures

o t‘wem ~towvanoble
roposed noicy hos

: SCoretnics f‘u'mg
i30T OT ARDIopT Gte ponth

anst Sy

n

Within the wider stakeholder contaxt.

we considered how we reward our whote
waorkforce, as coverad earlier. The semiar
rmanagament tearn engages frequently
with employees, either o ¢ business-wide
basis or in the cortext of smalier focus
groups, 1o solicit feedback genarally on

0 wide range of matters, including
rernuneration. Feedback is passed to the
Committee via the Executive team and is
taken into account by the Committee when
setting Executive Directars’ Rermuneration
Policy. Additionally, we paid attertion to
how governance is evolving g~d nave made
a number of enhancements in our newy
pohcy which are set cut on page 121
including increasing rminimmumm shareholding
requirements (M3R) and post cassation
shoreholding requirements.

The lost step in the policy review wos to
review relevant morket data t
[but ot drive) the Commitiess
consideraticns. [dota averview is cet out on
page 120). Tre Committee s gware of, and
shares, shareholder concerns regarding the
risk of cver reiance on benchmrarking. The
Comnrrittee's driver for any increased -eviard
s greater respons:blity or comoexity in the
relevant role and to reccgryse greater
capadility in the in dividudh = o Jrowing,
very successtul business such as curs, we
are cagrisant of retain'ng cur key pecpe ,
as they gain increasing market wertic S0
their prover capag’ fivies ana track record
I this regard, morket doto does provde

a usstu ‘sense-chock’

From the mult pie steps of the review,
the Committes concluded there wa
o compelling cose to increase toty’
corpensation potent '@ for our fxecut ve
Directors. The Committee beleves *ﬁo*
NCoroorating the increase nic the
ncentvise iong-term performance pest
aligns perforrmance de very, st e
execution ond sharenolder value.
we propose 1o incregse the maximum
oward pctem' o the PP fromn 250°
JOO o of pase salgry Tor the CEC anz #o
200% 1o 250% of bose cacry ‘o tne TF0
ziongs de the increases 13 Dot oo n-aty
-£2ss ation shareho ding g 'de

._) LA

and post



Shareholder consultation on proposed
changes

Our 2021 DRR was supported with 93% of
votes in favour. During 2022, we consulted
extensivery on our policy and DRR 2022
implermentation a~d engaged voth 21 of our
iargest sharenoders, representing arownd
&5% of our register, as well as the key proxy
agencies. The guaity of the interactions
wos excellent, and we appreciate the
engagerment and voiuabe ‘eedback. There
was a range of views and preferances
expressed, but we were pleased that the
overall weight of opinicn was strongly
SUDEOTTVE

Remuneration for 2023 - implementation
Fixed pay'

As disclosed previously, Johnny Thomson’s
cosh aliowanee 17 lieu of Lension
cortribution will reduce te 4% »f basic pay
from 1 January 2023 1o align with the
maiority of the JK workfcree.

The Comm-ttee considered Jornny
Thomson’s salary as pa-t of the review, The
Comim ttee is aware that high nflation is
not g solid -ationale for increasing executive
pay The Comrittee considered the
increased size and compiexity of the Groun
idoubed in size as shoven 0 the diagrar

on page 120}, and Johnny's vaiue as o
high-perfarrming CE0, ond conc'uded that
G Dase pay incredase was required as part

of increasing his total cornpensation
opportunity. Sharehoiders asked us 1o
review the incredse in the context of
irtended voder workforce pay incregses, the
macro-economic enyv ronment, inflationary
pressures foced by our colleagues and t-ie
overa | quentum of CED reward.

Having wcken these views on board we
agreed on increase 1o fis pay of &%, which
re~aing below the ncrease awarded G oLr
wider woreforce at 7. We believe T
prov des the nght b-alc e within the
Corr.pary ang wi! delivar ¢ competitive
CEC package

Annuol bonus:

e bonus wil

et as 2027 narmieliy

1205,

Sroets whl be bosed
Coved :)ngei Mexierurr
and CFO el rermain

3o 7 ase salary

SIting profit. 258% revenae,

PSP:
Arsng from the compeling case to increase
total compensction for the CEO, the
Committes plars 1o implement the
PSP rapurnu 1S year for the CEO, su“\Jec
1o sharehclcer approval of the pelicy.
Jehany Thomson will receive a PSF award
of 300% of pase salary (PSP 2022} Chris
D’m’ea wit receive a PSP award of 200%
 hase saiary (PSP 2022) (which will be
,_vru—\a.ted nesad on hime working eleven
months of the year).

A number of shareholders have expressed
a preterence for EPS over TSR {provided the
ROATCE Lnderpin remcins), and in our
consultation we discussed increasing the
weighting of treee-year CAGR adjusted EPS
groweth to 75% of the 1otal award from
5054, with 25% (oreviously 50%) remaining
on TSR relotive to the TT5E 250 (exciuding
financial services and investment [rusts)
As e maonty of charehode s were
SULDOTTve, we intend 1o progress with this
change for PSP (2022). We will retain the
ROATCE Lnderpin, recognising this ic

tmcaly important to sharehelders.

Durng consultetion shareqolders asked
Thot we ensire torgets Ore appropniote ¥
stretching ghver the greater quantum o
rewstd oropases The Committes
recognises tnat nreased quantum o
rescird showd be accompanied by
apcropriaten highevels of performance
aelivery. im setting targets, we seek tc e su
tnat the focus ar orgonic growth is strong,
the gqua'ity of acguisiticns rermamns hich and
that the ~ght risk appette 1s mantoinea. In
response 1o feedback. we irtend to increase
EF’S growth requires for moxir*r U pOyOLT
under the PSP frorn 12% 10 13
awerd i 2022, The minimum ‘,m"e:ho\d wil
eraain at 5% To's provides the rght degree
of stretch armpition for Diploma gt this time
considering the o ganic arowth
apportonties, Tne acduisiten pioelinge ang
the prevaie™r marset conditions. The Board
al o oversighn of ROATCE, Ve wir

cortinue evet o stretch
anrc y for eash PSP gt cvae

o far tne

Non-Executive Directors and Committee
evaluation

John Nienelas retired as Choir of the Board
in Janua-y 2022 and was succeeded by
David Lowden Dovid joined the Board as
Naon-Erxecutive Director and Cnair designate
on 19 October 2021, Non-Executive Uirector
fees were reviewed vsing equivalent inputs
and increases are shown on page 133

Tne Committee’s perforrance wos
ossessed as part of the annua! Boare
evaluction. | am pleased to report that
e Committee (s regarded as cperoting
etfectively and that the Board takes
regssarance from the quality of the
Commitize's work.

Conclusion

i closing T would once cgain like to thark
sharehoiders for tneir engagement aver this
last vear. We will —aintgin o c'ose dialogue
as we seek 1o deliver o competitive,
motivating pay framework thot s tightty
aligned to shareholder experience wihiist
maintzining good governance standards.
“trust vou find this report usetul and ook
forveard 1o rece’ving your support at the
AGM on 18 January 2023,

Andy Smith
Chair of the Remuneration Committee
21 Novemnber 2022
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REMUNERATION AT A GLANCE:
DIPLOMA’'S APPROACH TO REMUNERATION

Set out below is an illustration of how
remuneration aligns to strategy and how it
cascades in our decentralised business model

Our Purpose: Diploma'’s purpose is to consistently deliver value and reward our stakeholders by
making a positive difference to our colleagues, our customers and suppliers and our communities.

Diploma’s Strategy: build high-quality, scalable businesses for organic growth

Strategic pillar Short term incentive: Long term incentive: Rernuneration
Annual Bonus Performance Share Plan Principles

. mﬁ\-}m) - Remu neration aligned to _

) o business strategy and promoting
1 75% the fong-term success of the
GROWTH R ) Cormpany.

Revenue: Relative TSR: Supporting creation of

0, O, long-term shareholder value.
25% 25% Providing an appropriate balance

Froe e ™ between remuneration elements
2. €€ cashe which are transparent, stretching

SCALING 25%

and rigorousty applied.
Providing o balance between
imrediate and deferred
remuneration and encouraging
a high performance culture.

3: Non-financial KPis and torgets in place, flexibility to
DELIVERING VALUE introduce DVR (ESG) metrics into remuneration included
RESPONSIBLY in the Policy

CASCADE OF REMUNERATION {N OUR DECENTRALISED BUSINESS:

- Rernuneration Policy: updated Policy presented to sharehelders for voting at AGM in January 2023;
implementation reviewed annually.
EXECUTIVE ~ Emnphasis on pay for performance and alignment with shareholders on sustainable long-term
DIRECTORS performance: Group Annual Bonus and PSP measured en a bolanced set of defined financial
measures linked to strategy.

- Set locally by referring to Group framework which aligns metrics, targets and quantum for
different types of role. Group governance (including pay equity).
- Reviewed annually.
- Emphasis on pay for performance. Aligned variable pay, using a blend of Group and lecal
LEADERSHIP performance targets.
ROLES - Wider participation in Group PSP,

- Set locally, Group/Sector governance.
- Reviewed annually.

~ Fair and competitive in local market.
WORKFORCE - Linked to colleague value proposition.




Business Performance 2022 Annual Report of Remuneration

Strateoe sxeuticn Perionmanos Reward

Growth . Adjusted operating profit MGXIm um bonus

payable

searsificotior reveroe intiatives o
SLr b stractarally +2Q /O

Revenue

Q,
5% Maximum vesting

) - Jaric groth, F hf
S8 ireested e traregically reeocus o on PSP
ImEOrart coguEtineg +N%

Adjusted EPS

9%

(3 ear 2AGHE)

yoday o16arong

ROATCE:

17.3%

Relative TSR:
percentile rank

1%

(S-vecr pe farmance)

DR ent repes o] elercto Engagement index Flexibility to introduce
Eacell=nt fare ] socelerote: . 7(?0/0 .

"";‘-’“‘:\::J‘;' :ll“l;rj_lim :p\rj_j;L’Fr‘i:m;iR " (P07 7G4 DVR metrlcs

Sogaar of rore corsistert ams rolbust Scope 1& 2 emissions !n remun.erothn

reporting, 10,615 tonnes COs e included in Policy.

{oseling vear)

27UDWIBA0G 91040di0D)

Taraiots sot for tha Sest tirme,
Waste to landfill

60%

Arst year of measerenent]

$}USWLLDLS [DIduUDULY

2022 Broader Reward Priorities

Goal Action

Support lower paid colrlrezigl.-les most I ) Wage increase for colleagues paid less than £40k of 7.5%,
affected by the cost of living crisis which is higher than the overall workforce increase.

UOIIDWLIO U JIBYID

Retain talent in the competitive - R Wage increase for the workforce of 7% (2021: 4%).
talent market Review of variable pay structures and quantum.

Incentivise brilliant leaders on long-termn success PSP participation increased to ca. 50 participants (2021: ca. 35
participants, 2020: ca. 15 participants).
To keep pace with the growing Group variable pay structures
and quantum reviewed, high pay for high performance.

N2 Diplema PLC Annual Report 2022




REMUNERATION POLICY

2022 Remuneration Policy Review — process
ghanges to Remuneration ?olicy un_d its implementation

YL SOTUIT peie Dt IRl LSt T O Cvorthie Polc s

et v ot Fereorars Fulicy th b : by chare
s.bert rosrarehodor approval g irteraed 1 ornain
. Excellent performance and increased scale and complexity 2. Wider stakeholder context
of the Group: moved from FTSE ca. 185 to FTSE ca. 111 considered during Policy review:

- Ambitious growth plans,

- Attracting, retaining and incentivising
management.

- Increased market worth of
management given performance
track record.

- Workforce remuneration experience
and views.

- Focus on supporting wider workforce
during macro environment affecting
workforce-inflation, energy.

- Increasing importance of ESG
performance.

- Broader indicators of culture e.g.
colleague engagement (Engagement
index 79%).

~ Market developrnents in governance
practices, ensuring our governance
aligns with needs of stakeholders.

Adjusted earnings per share
7] 13 4 i 16 7 8 119

FY12-18 EPS
-+

@ 8
o N
e o CA |
- @ s s | i
%) by L] . \ i i
" Ll ; i

The Group has doubled whilst improving operating margin

3. Market insight:
used to ‘sense check”:

FY19 revenue: FY22 revenue:

£544.7m £1,012.8m a) Information on UK pay levels for

companies of similar size FTSE 150-100
(Diploma: FTSE 111, 30 Septernber 2022).
b) There are few direct peers for Diplomna.
Hence we use a range of companies
in similar markets or with similar
value-add business models to provide
a comparison (RS Group plc, Bunz! ple,
Inchcape plc, Spirax-Sarco Engineering
plc, Rentokil Initial ple, Howden Joinery
Group Ple, Spectris ple, Halma ple, DS

Revenue growth

FY19-22

role ¢ & | fe Sciencecs
& Conteols weals Lite Sciences Smith ple, Travis Perkins ple, Johnson
Y19 Matthey plc). Some within this list
Adjusted Operating Profit £97.2m are larger than Diploma but provide
{operating margin 17.8%) useful insight.

c) Variable pay targets for FTSE 250.

4. Shareholder consultation on prbﬁosed ch?:niges:

- Extensive, direct shareholder consultation with ca. 65% of the register.
- Consultation with key proxy voting agencies.
- Conversations with sharehoiders shaped policy proposals including considerations of quanturn and stretch in performance targets.




2022 Remuneration Policy proposals and rationale

analianmeer U with e der venk

Improvirg the ©
Directors’ ¢
refatirg g
of lzadership:

mpetitiveress of Bxecutive
SIS NEatinn oppot tanity,
sy usiness ard criticality

ot base pay irons 10

wEorco rare of 45 of

e 2 the pesd to retair aro rstivete o

Company groveth, The renswed Policy

pertorrance aro invest o sxpectations, as o

Moo crarge By aem s L

2007 1 2500

eraligrnert

F— . FRSTan L
SU oDy Lo sl

ver the ot perio

atic for 2022 wall

7-.’.‘,- [RRA R A RTINS

Ty I

salary Tor CFO and from

iyt 2050 oF

P ot base pay o

S 1l

M -

cxtension of post ermployment shoreb cldicsg requi ermers to row raaire 5070 of
MR o be held Tor two yeans after termiration dote

introduction of 50

Flewibilty to includs SO mietiios surnieg roxt pelioy pericd.

Proposed implementation of policy in FY23

Fixed
remuneration

Annual
bonus

Long-term
incentives

Shareholding
guideline

Post-cessation
guideline

Johnny Thomsan
(CEO)

Aase poy: 754,000
Benefits fund
Penzion: 41,085
leguivalert ta 4%,
of base pay from

" Jan23)

Chris Davies’
(CFO)

Change from
2021

Base pay: 1450,000
Benetits fund
Fensicrm: 118,000
(equivolent to 4%
of baze pay)

Mo 125%: base oay
Target: 62 5% base
DAy

Max: 3007 base pay
PSP (2022 200%:
base pay
Performarae period:
thrae yeors

Folding period: five
yours frorm gront

Ha ding reguirement:
2007 baze pay

Holding requirement:
S50% of SR for 2
years after the
terrmination aote

Man: 125% base pay
Target: 62.5% base
ey

Max: 200% baose pay
PSP (2022): 200%
bose pay
Perforrnance pericd:
three years

Folding pericd: five
vears fraom gram.

Holding requirernent:
250% base pay

5055 of the M3R tor
2 years ufter the
termination date

CEO base pay 6%
increass;

CED pension reducs;
New CFO appeinted

No change

Pelicy rmaximum
increased for CEO &
CFO

PSP award increased
for CEO

New CFO appointed

Shareholding
guidetne increaszd in
line with new PSP
MExima

increcsed post-
cessation guideline
from “Z months 1o
2 years

Haolding requirenscnt:

e 2070 Rerranzotior

Diploma PLC Annucl Report 2022
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REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration Polic

e

Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strategy Operation
Base salary e - A=t i

Maximum opportunity

s O

Pensions

éene‘f;its '




Component

Purpose and link to strategy

Maximum opportunity

v

Performance : . -
Bonus Plan Daolomun T
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Chair and Non-Executive Directors

Component Purpose and link to strateqy Operation Maximum opportunity Performance metrics

SEuer e Too3ttran

be 2

NMustration of application of Policy

R P v e

Johnny Thomson

[V

e e e e

New CFO Remuneration package




Considergtion of shareholder views

S

O

MIIAIDA

olicy for other employees

- P

Differences in remuneration p

' . PR PR
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Service contracts

S SR S S

83UDUIaA0D) 31040d107)

SIUIWALINIG [DIOURULY

Q
[ d
T
]
=
g
S
-]
-
3
+]
rt




REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

Lz oegelerer affine t
Baria el N Sal e (e Ha
Lo

enILT I

I e ot
SPaRria i ul et

Cooeton. T Doty T ke o 1

CornE event ey term it o7 3

[t I ST} NS

e -

oo Ole ©

e 2 ey et

e

W el Ty

re s T Liest o Terests o

T
Compensction
payable upon
Contioct Unexpired Notice earfy
dote term period terminction
W dan 2017 Rming e T
H - - 1 " " CRenT
o i alale Ly
)l Wt Lag)
" I
E I e e R s S he uonamoge
e s Tl

I

AL LT UTe T s

Payment for {oss of office

PR Ll

ponrLn

Rermuneration for new appointments

S e P




loymen

t shareholding re

r e

qui

-

rernents

and post-emp

o)

<
[1:]
2
<
;]
3

Committee discretion

o e

e w

~+

-

a

~*

@

@

o

o

EY

o

]

2

- - * - a2

e e O ‘ oL Chair and Non-Executive Directors

L Recruitment and term

S s e

aauoulaAen) ybiodion

$3UBWAID]LS |DI2UDUIY

Policy in respect of external board appointments for .
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REMUNERATION POLICY
CONTINUED

40 table
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

. - PN LT e Z v
= S e S A - . -1 t 2 .30 x : —_ e
Executive Directors (audited)
Total remuneration in 2022 and 2021
Jdonrny Thomson barbare Gibbes”
2022 2071 2022 207 2022
£000 £000

£000 £000
m 2=l

365

19

15

Forae - o e

Total fixed

T=rn 75 - )
- tes DO - Tt s
1,725 e E___
el o2
el LS e TR T M 2,062

399 3
456 =5

Total variable 2,951

Singte total figure 3,758

parture of Barbara Gi

B NV s B

bbg

. e T S

s and appointment of Chri

z ok gt oanon e R L emst e Tle = o ermeer 2000 Dietope 07 bagremm et e m 00T e
base saiary (unaudited)
A S E R S v ot LED e e Ty tTes o
Salary fram Salary from
1October T Octonet
2022 2027
£000 £000 ficrease i
K 754
Sy - s
T Do - S . 450

s Davies (audited)
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Pension {audited)

RS B AN 4

2022 200

LContribution Pension Contribution Fension

rate % of paid as cash rote % ot paid cs cash

base salary £000 base salary £000

S T e e 1 71 B
So-bara ks 4 15 4 4

Annual performance bonus (audited)
Bonus pay out for year ended 30 September 2022

e .
[

The Board ars

[apler i alie o
The e £1002

Tre IO ToT

Performance measure

Bonus awarded to each of the Executive Directors for year ended 30 Septermber 2022

e . Besrolony o 20eactugibonus;ora pereentage of 2001 bosc salary . R022borus
Financiai

_Onerger | Mawmom o objectives  Totalbonus - £000

: S = 125% 125% 889

il : Lo i 125% 125% 456

ended 30 September 2023

Bonus awards for year




Long-term incentive awards {oudited)

' AR S )

Performance conditions

0
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Awards vesting in 2022 (audited)

Tre 758 Swars grattes o

Maximure Vestad
award award

st o resen cd e

Maximury gward Vested cward
T P T 2
LET OO DEIDve DT T ST v el vel - B e L 3
Share price Share Snare
ot date price at Proportion Shares Pa-formanze aporeciation
of grant 30 Sep 2022 of oward vested eiement eierment- Total
vesting number £000 £007 £000 :

100% 85,481 BRORRS ol CuET
100% 19,374 ol 256

Dividend equivalent paym

SO ETT T Ty

ents (audited)
1 4 R oo

Lo

- .o - ~ teeae Al o

= { m

Outstanding share-based performance awards (audited)}

i .




Diploma PLC 2011 and 2020 Performance Share Plan {audited}

Shares Shares
Shares over which over which
Fare voiue of over which awards awards
Market  the cwerd at End of awords held granted Vested Lapsed held at
price a0 oaote  dote of gront pertarmance ot 1Oct during during the during the 30 Sep
o of award 1000 periog Vesting date i the year __period _period 2022
Jehnny Thomson
oo oo Sl L akT - 85,481 - -
Diles Uk - - - 74,804
I o - - 57,007
: T S TOR Y 1L - 19,574 - -
; 0 Ger 1007 R - - (8,601 17,201
o S hen valA - 20,485 - (13,656) 6,829
ir - -
- - T - B
Chair and Non-Executive Directors’ remuneration (audited
SIS RS TULET L R A T L Septes L v g
Toto! tees
2022 2021
£000 L0306
TGRS 1 207
N 48 vl
67 f
- 77
o 55 T
55 K

o]
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ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Executive Directors’ interests (audited)

Vestied Options
Yeur of Optiens: 0 at Exercised during the unexercised as Exercise Eariest normat
F0ct 2024 in year yeat' at 30 Sep 2022 exercise date Expiry date

_ RE AET

. As at 30 Sep 2022 As at 30 Sep 2G71
Qptions with Oatione with
Ordinary  Opticns vested performance Ordinary Optigns vested performance
shares  but unexercised measures shares  but unexercises measures

L -

O e

P DT 102,330 85,481 131,81
: 5,082 19,374 24,030

Chair and Nen-Executive Directors’ interests in ordinary shares {audited)
Trefu e os Doe A It ST L I Ao L te I ke LA RS

_mterestanoidnary shates
_Asat30 Sep 2022 £: o135 Sen
- 2500
9,045
7,545
5,045 N
2,045 Z

o e 640




Remuneration in context
Chief Executive pay ratio {unaudited}

DL el TETL T T e LT el LT ey DD T ITE

25th percentile Medion 75t percentile
POy rotic pey rotic

Rctio of bose poy Totol pay
Base salary 10 CED bone poy ond bernehts
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formance (unaudited)

O
[=}
=
B4
©
=
a
+
14
@
[+
<
1]
]
2
o
2
2}
14

SR omdcegnite T Dope STt soo et U EE DA s

Y Ak I Ao e o S e

LT TR T e 3T oD

Growth in the value of a hypothetical £100 holding over ten years

500 =
o
3
o,

750 a
v
+
=]
e d

530 I
3
®
3
=

450 [

300 9
>
o
=

150 2
o
=
3

s fa

30 Sep 200: 30 Sez 30 Sen 2074 30 Sep 2018 20 G 2000 31 8ap 10T 3 Ger 2R 30 Ser 2019 30 Sep 2627 70 Seg 3621 30 Ser 2022 S

— Dipiong PLY — FISE 200 [excluging Investment Truste)

R REIS DR Lo T o gl e s T e e
—_ “’ - Bl P R o D o




ANNUAL REPORT ON REMUNERATION

CONTINUED

Chief Executive Officer remuneration compared with annual growth in TSR (unaudited)

MName

Johnnf Thomson

Jomrm ThorTelsn
Jetreny Thiomman

s

durmny Tromrann

Thoros o

. T PR
s Thommpnon

dksls alelAald

- T . -~ =
[EFT SERRSTETR AT R Ll

by e

CEC single
hgure of total
remunaration

(£000}

o

-y

Annual boaus
Sgamnst
maximunm
opportunity

100%

Actual share
owdard vesting
ggainst
maximur
apportumity

100%

Annual
growthn

_ir TSR
~17%

2622 lery] Change
£m £m £m
177.5 PR 0 A
56.2 L 53

Percentage change in remuneration of

i AR et e

s tTOOUL

Directors

e v

D

and employees (gnaudited)

‘o,

Base salary/fee change [%a} Fension change [ Taxcpie nenett chonge e Boﬁugiiw:f‘g_e (%51 o
i 2022 2021 2000 2022 202 2620 2022 202) 2020 2022 2021 2020
vs 2021 ve 2020 vs 2019 vs 2021 vs 202G v 2019 vs 2021 ve 2020 ve 201G vs 2021 vy 2020 we 2019
Executive Directors
No _ _ 3 No o
i T B +3 charnge N -18 ' - +2 - shapge +3 - =
MNe to _
& . +7 change Tou +7 change z +2 - =z +7 I |
ecutive Directors’
_ Nc
R n/a change T3
Nc .
AN -69 change -
[ No
o - +3 crrange chenge
e +6 - -3
_ e
R e R +3  change -
o +185 -G -z
Employees of the
Parent Company n/a : B n/fa z T n/a z -t A/ = -z
7 - No [T _ .
Senior management team +7.5 - - +7.5 - -1 change choage +22 - o




Executives and senior management below the Board (unaudited)

L SHame L e z oot 50

Shares over
Shore whicth Shares
Face vaiue of over whick awards aver which
Marhet price  the oward ct Enoof  awag-ds held granted Vested Lapsed awards held
nt oate of dote of arant  performance  at 1 Dctober during the during the during the at 30 Sep
cward £000 period 200 yeat year year 2022
B 54 QG - 29,546 4,460 -

- - T Tg,612 39,860

- 102,258 - 8,086 94,172

GOVERNANCE

Remuneration Committee

ey

e s nige a6 T + - . Tt meteTe i

B TR e ]

srooLp R e

mittee Report

IR R L T s Rl I T :
L
Remuneration principles and structure
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ANNUAL REFPORT ON REMUNERATION
CONTINUED

Services from external advisors (unaudited)
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

VOTHEE e e e mee aog Shureholders

)

e

N .

Shareholders
Incorporction and prmcnpai activity

O

MIIAIIA

Annual General Meeting
o2 Meetnic

yoday 2baipng

Substcntlul shnreholdlngs

It

Percentage of Fercentage
ordinary shares ot ordinary
(September share capital
20221 Noversber 20223

ajupulsaor sybiodicd
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Authorlty to mcke market purchcses of own shares
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
CONTINUED

Disclosures required under Listing Rule 9.8.4C

R : v S 2 DR AT a4 - -
[’ vt LIt Rae SR A0 et oy

Lrsung Rulg

"assessment of going concern

PN .

L Rann

Stotement of Directors’ respensibilities for preparing the
financial statements
N Do tte Lo Report &

Peam s e LT
DUIITILE s Tn

n statement

e g 1100

Financial o
Results and dividend . -

AL T FosE!

Independent Auditors - - Lo - . k _:k . S -
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

2022 2001
B - ~ Nete f:mi im
Revenue o 1,012.8 T2

Dt oo e et (638.3)
Gross profit ' B ' - 7 - T - 3745
Doero Lt o Tt {25.9} )
LS e R L e L {204.3) Tl
Operating profit - 144.3 1047
FmanIon sernETe Tt : (14.8) o
Profit before tax 129.5 Gor
T Enpet a0 & (34.1) e
Profit for the year 95.4

R

R 94.7 7 &

. 954 5T

Earnings per share
S £ 76.0p G
Joeten oz Tt : 75.9p e

2022 20
_ hete fm Lo

T 7 . ’ - o I T T 1443 TR
B T e S U ST L G s NS N B SOA I S N 46 .9 R
Adjusted operating prkoﬁt ' o o - o ST S
s R S LTSRN _ B - (11.8) Sz
Adjusted profit before tax o ' 7 N - B Y
Adjusted earnings per share < 107.5p S

T

=y = P




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Profit for the year

Items that will not be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Statement ) S
T TR S e s U PR R ot e 10.6 e
T A S S o el (2 SR

Hems that may be reclassified to the Consolidated Income Stotement
I T L A e i 76.8 -l

Total Other Comprehensive Income 87.6 -l

183.0 50

182.2 =
183.0

yoday n1beinng

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Snare Share Trorciation Heaging kevaimea  Sharehelders’ MinaiTy Total
capital prerur rener ve TRLETVE earnngs equity 1te este equi‘ty
Nore £ £ £ im im £m im £m

At10October 2020 R =E ez i 527.0 T 5307
R R N R T - - B T el 60.8 Ll 60.5

i

< - T 1.8 - 1.8

0
=]
=
©
=]
-
[+
~
[ ]
o
]
<
(1]
=
3
]
3
]
]

o 1.0 - 1.0
3 et Se it e L e , : " (0.5) (0.5)
S T T AR .. - = 0.9

W - - - N (0.9) {0.9)
Lt mrTEren ofnoon - - - - - o 0.7
N L i - - - - L (52.9) oz (53.2)
At 30 September 2021 - - ol Lz ER 536.3 - 541.0
Totax Doenerae s e 0 T gt RO 182.2 CE 183.0
. o 28 2.8

$1U3WSI1R1G [DIDUDUIY

LI SN

S : ] ‘s 0.4 0.4
e B L TP R - - o (2.8) (2.8)

L B . . - = (1.3)

UOIDULIOU| JBYI0)

) - (1.9) (1.9)

coen T , - 1.2 . 1.2
VL et Tn T o - - - s (0.3)
- . : ; : L (56.2) - (56.4)
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C OLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

Operating proﬁtm_ o

ST

2022
£m
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18.%

_ (8.7
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9.9

Net cash used in investing activities

Cash flow from financing activities

Net cash from financing activities
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cosh equivalents
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Bt T e

Cash and cash equivalents at end of yeclr" o
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ALTERNATIVE PERFORMANCE MEASURES'
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2022

1. General information
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 20272
CONTINUED

3. Geographic segment analysis by origin
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5. Financial expense, net
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

2022
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8. Earnings per share
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED
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12. Leases - right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUYED

1}. Deferred tax
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

17. Cash and cash equivalents

2022 202°
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¢) Currency risk
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 50 SEPTEMBER 2022

Trade and other receivables/payables
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

20. Minority interests
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21, Acquisitions and disposals of businesses
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022

CONTINUED

22, Reconciliation of operating profit to

cash flow from operating activities

2022 2022 2071 2021
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24, Retiremnent benefit asset and obligations
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

a) Pension surplus / (deficit) included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

Effect of the Scheme on the Group's future
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Effect of the Kubo Scheme on the Group’s future cash fiows
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

27.3 Adjusted earnings per share
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27.4 Free cash flow and free cash flow conversion

[ - e PR R R~

ComeTe emmoae geg £ TG onns T e T s Tee e T T e T e T

rate £m £
S ’ s e
56.2 -
C 0.2 I
_ 0.3
ta gEb T oes M

177.6 EE
6.5 <L
. {13.7) T
Cr eI LT DD . 74
Emr e gl mepes Fn e e e 0T (131.3)
Free cash Hlow ' ' e T 1204 -
Adjusted earnings 133.9 i
Free cash flow conversion 0% T




27.5 Trading capital employed and ROATCE
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED
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1.9 Property, plant and equipment
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GROUP ACCOUNTING POLICIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

f} Borrowings
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1.20 Accounting standards, interpretations and amendments
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APANY STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEFTEMBER 2022
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NOTES TO THE PARENT COMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 SEPTEMBER 2022
CONTINUED

d) Investments
2022 2621
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Our audit approach

Overview
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The scope of our audit
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

Materiality
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Conclusions relating to going concern
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED
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Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF DIPLOMA PLC

CONTINUED

OTHER REQUIRED REPORTING

Companles Act 2006 exceptlon reportung
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Christopher Burns (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of PncewoterhouseCoopers LLP
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SUBSIDIARIES OF DIPLOMA PLC

Corporate Governance | Financial Statements Other {nformation
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FINANCIAL CALENDAR AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Announcemnents (provisional dates)
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T

dznte

nnual Report & Accounts

P e s - -

o N PR IO GRS S

Share Registror
Computershare Investor Services PLC




ADVISORS

Corporate Stockbrokers
Nummis Securities

Barclays Bank PLC

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
R T

Solicitors
Simmons & Simmeons LLP

Bankers
Barclays Bank PLC

- CEa e

HSBC Bank pic

yoday aiBayoag MBIAIBAD

#2UDUIBACG 23Da0di0)

.}
3
a
-3
o
o
wn
[ad
a
[
5]
3
1]
3
-+
w

UOHDW O] 1Y)




FIVE YEAR RECORD

reor ended 30 Septemnber
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